
 

 

 

 

 

 

ENTERPRISE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2023 

 

 

  CALL IN: 1-646-838-1601,  CONFERENCE ID: 562622539# 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

313 CAMPUS STREET 

CELEBRATION, FLORIDA 34747 

407-566-1935 

Agenda Page #001



Enterprise Community Development District 
 
Board of Supervisors Staff 

Jason Herrick, Chairman Angel Montagna, District Manager 
Kimberly Locher, Vice Chairman Sarah Sandy, District Counsel 
Gregg Harkness, Assistant Secretary Kathy Leo, District Engineer 

Paul Johnson, Assistant Secretary  Gregory Kolb, District Engineer 

Henry Thrash, Assistant Secretary Russ Simmons, Field Manager 

 

District Office:  Meeting Location: 

313 Campus Street In person: 313 Campus Street, Celebration, FL 

Celebration, FL 34747 Participate remotely:  

407-566-1935 www.EnterpriseCDD.org  1-646-838-1601, ID: 562622539# 

Meeting Agenda 

Wednesday, August 16, 2023 – 4:00 p.m. 

 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Public Comment Period 

4. Business Matters 

5. Approval of the Consent Agenda 

A. Minutes of the June 7, 2023, Meeting 

B. Financial Statements 

C. Invoices and Check Register 

6. Public Hearing for Adoption of the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget 

A. Proposed Budget 

B. Public Comment 

C. Resolution 2023-11, Adopting the Budget  

D. Resolution 2023-12, Budget Appropriations 

7. Staff Reports 

A. District Manager 

i. Consideration of Agreement with Celebration CDD for Payment of Shared 

GOGov Reporting System Services 

ii. Fiscal Year 2024 Meeting Schedule 

B. Field Operations 

i. Field Management Reports 

C. Utility Operations 

i. Utility Report  

D. District Counsel 

i. Plat for Island Village Phase 1A Booster Pump Station 

E. Engineer 

i. Work Authorization 2023-02 to Prepare Annual Report 

ii. Annual Report 

F. District Representative 

G. Mattamy Homes/Island Village 

8. Other Business and Supervisor Requests 

9. Adjournment 

 
The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 6, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

Agenda Page #002

http://www.enterprisecdd.org/


Section 5 
 

Consent Agenda  
 

Agenda Page #003



Subsection 5A 
 

Minutes 

Agenda Page #004



MINUTES OF MEETING 
ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Enterprise Community 

Development District was held Wednesday, June 7, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. at the District 

Office, 313 Campus Street, Celebration, Florida 34747. 

 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 Jason Herrick Chairman 

 Gregg Harkness Assistant Secretary 

 Henry Thrash Assistant Secretary 

 

Also present, either in person or communications media technology, were: 

 Angel Montagna Manager: Inframark, Management Division 

 Sarah Sandy (via phone) Attorney: Kutak Rock LLP 

 Gregory Kolb Engineer: GAI Consulting 

 Kent Hipp (via phone) Gray Robinson 

 Renea McRoberts Inframark, Utility Operations Division 

 Russ Simmons Inframark, Management Division 

 Eddie Smith Inframark, Utility Operations Division 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 
Mr. Herrick called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.  

Ms. Montagna called the roll and stated a quorum was present for the meeting.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Pledge of Allegiance 
Mr. Herrick led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period  
No members of the public being present, the next order of business followed. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Business Matters 
There being no items of business, the next order of business followed. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consent Agenda 
A. Acceptance of the Minutes of the April 5, 2023, Meeting 

The minutes are included in the agenda package and available for public review in the 

District Office during normal business hours. 

B. Financial Statements 

The financial statements are included in the agenda package and available for public 

review in the District Office during normal business hours. 

C. Invoices and Check Register  

The check register and invoices are included in the agenda package and available for 

public review in the District Office during normal business hours. 

Agenda Page #005



Enterprise CDD 

June 7, 2023 

 

2 

On MOTION by Mr. Harkness, seconded by Mr. Thrash, 

with all in favor, unanimous approval was given to the 

consent agenda, as presented. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Presentation of the Fiscal Year 2024 
Proposed Budget 

A. Proposed Budget 

Ms. Montagna presented the proposed budget for fiscal year 2024 and reviewed 

changes made to the water and sewer budget, to correct the field contract amount for 

contracts-utility services with Inframark for the second-year price of $1,202,746. 

Discussion ensued regarding utility repair and maintenance increased to $1,000,000 

based on actual spending, slight increases in the general fund due to inflation and contract 

increases, assessments proposed to remain the same, proposed revenue increase due to 

Island Village, request to round non-contract numbers up to the nearest 100 with no 

increase to the assessments, and use of fund balance to keep assessments flat. 

B. Resolution 2023-10, Approving the Budget and Setting a Public Hearing 

Thereon 

Mr. Herrick read Resolution 2023-10 into the record by title. 

After a brief discussion, the hearing date was amended from August 9 to August 16. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Thrash, seconded by Mr. Harkness, 

with all in favor, unanimous approval was given to 

Resolution 2023-10, approving the budget for fiscal year 

2024 and setting a public hearing for Wednesday, August 

16, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. District Manager 

i. Number of Registered Voters – 1   

Ms. Montagna entered the number of registered voters into the record. 

B. Field Operations 

i. Field Management Reports 

The field management reports are included in the agenda package and available for 

public review in the District Office during normal business hours.  

C. Utility Operations   

i. Utility Report  

The utility report is included in the agenda package and available for public review in 

the District Office during normal business hours. 

Discussion ensued regarding issues with Island Village, backups, contractors 

destroying facilities which are billed back, two-inch Sensus meter replacements due to 

Agenda Page #006



Enterprise CDD 

June 7, 2023 

 

3 

failures, fence is still in process, painting the main station scheduled for July 31, and staff 

will investigate the Island Village lift station for white paint and sand.  

D. District Counsel  

i. Acceptance of Engagement Letter for Matters Related to Eminent 

Domain  

Mr. Hipp discussed the eminent domain engagement letter, attorney fees to be paid by 

DOT, the proposed taking of two drainage easements over existing ponds, DOT appraisal 

complete but in review, valuation based on what is being developed around the parcel, 

and appraisal anticipated to be received in 60 to 90 days, along with Mr. Hipp’s 

recommendations. 

Discussion ensued regarding issues and impacts to the ponds and other District 

property, Celebration CDD also engaged Gray Robinson regarding their affected 

property, questions if any impacts to the District west of I-4, and potentially a significant 

dollar value based on recent developments. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Harkness, seconded by Mr. Thrash, 

with all in favor, unanimous approval was given to accept 

the engagement letter with Gray Robinson for matters 

related to eminent domain. 

 

E. Engineer  

i. Work Authorization 2023-01 for Island Village Phase 2A  

Mr. Kolb discussed work authorization 2023-01 for Island Village Phase 2A, 

Discussion ensued regarding the project, anticipated schedule for Mattamy Homes, 

booster pump station to support the build-out stages of Island Village, working around 

gas lines, providing field inspection and management services under this work 

authorization, three days per week for 34 weeks based on the schedules from Mattamy 

Homes, Celebration Boulevard extension, and no need to shut down potable water. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Thrash, seconded by Mr. Harkness, 

with all in favor, unanimous approval was given to work 

authorization 2023-01 with GAI Consultants for Island 

Village Phase 2A, in an amount not to exceed $106,080.00. 

 

F. District Representative 

There being no report, the next item followed. 

G. Mattamy Homes/Island Village 

There being no report, the next order of business followed. 

Agenda Page #007



Enterprise CDD 

June 7, 2023 

 

4 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business and Supervisor Requests 
There being none, the next order of business followed. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 
The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, July 5, 2023, at 4:00 p.m.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Harkness, seconded by Mr. Thrash, 

with all in favor, the meeting adjourned at 4:28 p.m. 

 

 

 

_________________________________      ____________________________________  

Angel Montagna, Secretary Chairman, Jason Herrick 

Agenda Page #008



Subsection 5B 
 

Financial Statements 

Agenda Page #009



TO: Board of Supervisors, Enterprise CDD

FROM: Raul Planas, District Accountant 

CC: Angel Montagna, District Manager 

DATE:

SUBJECT: June Financial Report

General Fund 

Adminstration 

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Field
●

Road and Street Facilities 

●

●

Water Fund 

Adminstration 
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

Water Utility Services 

●

●

Field 

●

●

●

Communication - Telephone - services through current month.

Insurance-General Liability - FMIT and Storage Tank Insurance invoices. 

ProfServ-Legal Services  - Kutak Rock Invoices through April 23.

Total expenses through June approximately 76% of the adopted budget (excluding Debt Service & CIP). 

Insurance-General Liability - FMIT and Storage Tank Insurance invoices. 

Misc-Web Hosting - Innersync website/compliance services for FY23 and Hostmonster website hosting.

Legal Advertising - Orlando Sentinel invoice paid through Jan 23.

R&M Signage - includes sign boards on Enterprise property, paid to Celebration CDD. Underbudgeted for FY23.

R&M Sidewalks - includes concrete from Backyard Design Pros and K&D Concrete. Also includes grinding wheels and 
supplies. Underbudgeted for FY23.

Total revenues through June are approxiamtely 88% of the adopted budget.  

Misc-Web Hosting - Innersync website/compliance services for FY23 and Hostmonster website hosting.

MEMORANDUM

July 27, 2023

Please find the attached June 2023 Financial Report. During your review, please keep in mind that the goal is for revenue to meet or 
exceed the annual budget and for expenditures to be at or below the annual budget. To assist with your review, an overview of each of the 
District’s funds is provided below. Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at 
Raul.Planas@Inframark.com.

Financial Report

P/R- Board of Supervisors - Board payroll through June 23.

Total Revenues through June are approximately 110% of the adopted budget.  

ProfServ-Engineering - GAI Consultants invoices through May 23.

Auditing Services  - Paid in full.

Total Expenditures through June are approximately 65% of the adopted budget. 

FICA Taxes - Board payroll taxes through June 23.

Annual District Filing Fee - Paid in full FY23.

Contracts-Bulk Wastewater -TohoWater invoices through current month. 

Electricity - General - Duke Energy invoices through current month.

Contracts-Bulk Potable Water -TohoWater invoices through current month. 

Electricity - Streelighting - Duke Energy paid through current month. Underbudgeted for FY23.

R&M Utility Maintenance - utility repairs, water testing and monthly contracted services. Underbudgeted for FY23.

Rental - Container - Mobile Mini invoices paid through current month.

ProfServ-Trustee Fees - Trustee fees through Sep 23. Underbudgeted for FY23.

Auditing Services  - Paid in full.

ProfServ-Legal Services - Kutak Rock invoices through April 23.

P/R- Board of Supervisors - Board payroll through June 23.

ProfServ-Engineering - GAI Consultants invoices through May 23. Underbudgeted for FY23.

FICA Taxes - Board payroll taxes through June 23.

Communication - Telephone - services through current month. Underbudgeted for FY23.

Agenda Page #010



ENTERPRISE

Prepared by

Community Development District

Financial Report

June 30, 2023

Agenda Page #011



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Page #

Balance Sheet - All Funds …………………………………………………. 1 - 2

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

General Fund …………………………………………………. 3 - 4

Water / Sewer Fund …………………………………………………. 5 - 6

SUPPORTING SCHEDULES

Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Schedule …………………………………………………. 7

Cash and Investment Report …………………………………………………. 8 - 9

Right-of-Way Fees Electricity …………………………………………………. 10

Due To/From Other Districts …………………………………………………. 11

Table of Contents

Agenda Page #012



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

June 30, 2023

Agenda Page #013



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2023

Governmental and Enterprise Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION GENERAL FUND

WATER & SEWER 

FUND TOTAL

ASSETS

Cash - Checking Account 1,491,226$              1,401,550$              2,892,776$            

Accounts Receivable 40,000 814,351 854,351

Allow -Doubtful Accounts - (4,327) (4,327)

Due From Other Districts - 40,746 40,746

Due From Other Funds - 25,157 25,157

Investments:

Money Market Account 1,549,159 1,579,010 3,128,169

Connection Fees Fund - 5,433,082 5,433,082

Maintenance Reserve - 1,842,547 1,842,547

Operating Reserve - 1,007,533 1,007,533

Reserve Fund - 489,160 489,160

Revenue Fund - 6,501 6,501

Sinking fund - 160,000 160,000

Surplus - 19,780 19,780

Treasury Bills (3 months) - 2,750,000 2,750,000

Treasury Bills (6 months) - 500,000 500,000

Prepaid Items - 1,988 1,988

Deposits - 200 200

Fixed Assets

Land - 218,400 218,400

Infrastructure - 25,795,471 25,795,471

Accum Depr - Infrastructure - (15,890,966) (15,890,966)

Property Under Capital Leases - 344,576 344,576

Construction Work In Process - 5,774,389 5,774,389

Other Fixed Assets - 4,108,112 4,108,112

TOTAL ASSETS 3,080,385$              36,417,260$            39,497,645$          

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable 22,804$                   197,236$                 220,040$               

Accrued Expenses 2,183 797,412 799,595

Deposits - 1,159,059 1,159,059

Revenue Bonds Payable-Current - 935,000 935,000

Deferred Amount of Refunding - (363,049) (363,049)

Acc Amort-Deferred Amt on Ref. - 312,625 312,625

Due To Other Funds 25,157 - 25,157

Revenue Bonds Payable-LT - 960,000 960,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES 50,226 3,998,201 4,048,427

Page 1

Agenda Page #014



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2023

Governmental and Enterprise Funds

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION GENERAL FUND

WATER & SEWER 

FUND TOTAL

FUND BALANCES / NET ASSETS

Fund Balances

Nonspendable:

Prepaid Items - 1,988 1,988

Assigned to:

Operating Reserves 172,992 - 172,992

Unassigned: 2,857,167 - 2,857,167

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt - 18,505,408 18,505,408

Restricted for Debt Service - 3,525,520 3,525,520

Unrestricted/Unreserved - 10,386,143 10,386,143

TOTAL FUND BALANCES / NET ASSETS 3,030,159$              32,419,059$            35,449,218$          

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCES / NET ASSETS 3,080,385$              36,417,260$            39,497,645$          

Page 2

Agenda Page #015



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

REVENUES

Interest - Investments 2,807$             2,105$             66,921$              64,816$           

Right-of-Way Fees 330,000 247,500 335,498 87,998

Interest - Tax Collector - - 185 185

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 364,861 364,861 364,860 (1)

Special Assmnts- Discounts (14,594) (14,594) (14,146) 448

Other Miscellaneous Revenues - - 53 53

TOTAL REVENUES 683,074 599,872 753,371 153,499

EXPENDITURES

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 2,400 1,800 1,500 300

FICA Taxes 184 138 115 23

ProfServ-Engineering 23,000 17,250 1,331 15,919

ProfServ-Info Technology 1,183 887 887 -

ProfServ-Legal Services 10,000 7,500 7,036 464

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 60,536 45,402 45,402 -

ProfServ-Property Appraiser 200 200 163 37

Auditing Services 5,000 5,000 4,800 200

Communication - Telephone 750 563 319 244

Postage and Freight 750 563 239 324

Insurance - General Liability 21,757 16,318 16,150 168

Printing and Binding 1,200 900 363 537

Legal Advertising 500 375 476 (101)

Misc-Records Storage - - 3,360 (3,360)

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 7,297 7,297 7,014 283

Misc-Contingency 1,989 1,492 360 1,132

Misc-Web Hosting 1,550 1,550 787 763

Office Supplies 350 263 - 263

Annual District Filing Fee 175 175 175 -

Total Administration 138,821 107,673 90,477 17,196

Other Public Safety

Contracts-Sheriff 15,000 11,250 - 11,250

Total Other Public Safety 15,000 11,250 - 11,250

Physical Environment

Contracts-Water Quality 17,035 12,780 7,458 5,322

Contracts-Aquatic Control 4,920 3,690 3,690 -

Contracts-Pest Control 13,757 10,318 10,318 -

R&M-Wetland 1,000 750 - 750

Total Physical Environment 36,712 27,538 21,466 6,072

For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Page 3

Agenda Page #016



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District
General Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt

R&M-Road Drainage 6,500 4,875 - 4,875

Total Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt 6,500 4,875 - 4,875

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 178,664 133,998 133,998 -

Contracts-Landscape 100,000 75,000 75,000 -

Contracts-Irrigation 16,000 12,000 12,000 -

Contracts-Trash & Debris Removal 2,000 1,500 1,500 -

Contracts-Pine Straw 34,300 25,725 - 25,725

Contracts-Tree & Shrub Maintenance 20,000 15,000 15,000 -

Electricity - General 2,000 1,500 431 1,069

Utility - Refuse Removal 5,543 4,157 2,892 1,265

R&M-Boardwalks 12,500 9,375 - 9,375

R&M-Common Area 12,000 9,000 2,117 6,883

R&M-Other Landscape 15,000 11,250 7,300 3,950

R&M-Irrigation 10,000 7,500 3,702 3,798

R&M-Sidewalks 15,000 11,250 39,320 (28,070)

R&M-Hardscape Cleaning 7,000 5,250 - 5,250

R&M-Painting 1,000 750 - 750

R&M-Maintenance Building 7,224 5,418 5,418 -

Misc-Contingency 15,000 11,250 5,327 5,923

Total Field 453,231 339,923 304,005 35,918

Road and Street Facilities

Electricity - Streetlights 13,000 9,750 15,169 (5,419)

R&M-Road Cleaning 11,704 8,778 3,192 5,586

R&M-Roads & Alleyways 2,500 1,875 762 1,113

R&M-Signage 2,000 1,500 2,746 (1,246)

R&M-Streetlights 12,500 9,375 - 9,375

Total Road and Street Facilities 41,704 31,278 21,869 9,409

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 691,968 522,537 437,817 84,720

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures (8,894) 77,335 315,554 238,219

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance (8,894) - - -

TOTAL FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (8,894) - - -

Net change in fund balance (8,894)$            77,335$           315,554$            238,219$         

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2022) 2,714,605 2,714,605 2,714,605

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 2,705,711$      2,791,940$      3,030,159$         

Page 4

Agenda Page #017



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District
Water and Sewer Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

OPERATING REVENUES

Interest - Investments 9,500$             7,125$             120,147$            113,022$         

Water Revenue 1,765,163 1,323,872 1,715,987 392,115

Sewer Revenue 3,598,752 2,699,064 3,091,968 392,904

Irrigation Fees 1,501,484 1,126,113 1,269,984 143,871

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 30,000 22,500 220,066 197,566

Connection Fees - W/S 750,000 562,500 332,852 (229,648)

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 7,654,899 5,741,174 6,751,004 1,009,830

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel and Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 2,400 1,800 1,500 300

FICA Taxes 184 138 115 23

ProfServ-Engineering 35,000 26,250 66,291 (40,041)

ProfServ-Financial Advisor 5,000 3,750 - 3,750

ProfServ-Legal Services 16,000 12,000 4,048 7,952

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 61,345 46,009 46,009 -

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 4,055 3,041 4,827 (1,786)

Auditing Services 5,000 3,750 4,800 (1,050)

Communication - Telephone 600 450 954 (504)

Postage and Freight 500 375 159 216

Insurance - General Liability 18,415 18,415 16,150 2,265

Printing and Binding 800 600 242 358

Legal Advertising 500 375 476 (101)

Miscellaneous Services 6,500 4,875 2,539 2,336

Misc-Web Hosting 1,550 1,550 787 763

Office Supplies 500 375 - 375

Total Personnel and Administration 158,349 123,753 148,897 (25,144)

Water Utility Services

Contracts-Bulk Potable Water 651,396 488,547 614,763 (126,216)

Contracts-Bulk Wastewater 1,672,422 1,254,317 1,699,244 (444,927)

Contracts-Misc Labor 5,000 3,750 - 3,750

Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 1,393,188 1,044,891 1,068,089 (23,198)

Total Water Utility Services 3,722,006 2,791,505 3,382,096 (590,591)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Page 5

Agenda Page #018



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District
Water and Sewer Fund

ANNUAL

ADOPTED YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE VARIANCE ($)

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL FAV(UNFAV)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period Ending June 30, 2023

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 395,906 296,930 296,930 -

Contracts-Utility Service 1,145,472 859,104 859,104 -

Electricity - General 95,000 71,250 88,500 (17,250)

Internet - Lift stations 33,840 25,380 25,149 231

Rental - Container 1,800 1,350 1,385 (35)

R&M-Meter Change-Out 225,000 168,750 1,716 167,034

R&M-Utility Maintenance 500,000 375,000 720,328 (345,328)

R&M-Maintenance Building 7,500 5,625 5,418 207

Misc-Contingency 2,500 1,875 693 1,182

Total Field 2,407,018 1,805,264 1,999,223 (193,959)

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement 935,000 935,000 935,000 -

Interest Expense 57,506 57,506 33,545 23,961

Total Debt Service 992,506 992,506 968,545 23,961

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 7,279,879 5,713,028 6,498,761 (785,733)

Operating income (loss) 375,020 28,146 252,243 224,097

Change in net assets 375,020$         28,146$           252,243$            224,097$         

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING (OCT 1, 2022) 32,166,816 32,166,816 32,166,816

TOTAL NET ASSETS, ENDING 32,541,836$    32,194,962$    32,419,059$       

Page 6

Agenda Page #019



June 30, 2023

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Supporting Schedules

Agenda Page #020



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Discount / General Fund

Date Net Amount (Penalties) Collection Gross

Received Received Amount Costs Amount

Assessments Levied in FY 2023 364,860$           

Allocation % 100%

11/22/22 6,045$                257$                123$             6,425$               

12/09/22 295,023$            12,544$           6,021$          313,588$           

12/22/22 13,912$              590$                284$             14,785$             

01/10/23 15,526$              492$                317$             16,335$             

02/08/23 12,685$              264$                259$             13,208$             

03/08/23 101$                   1$                    2$                 104$                  

04/10/23 153$                   -$                 3$                 156$                  

05/09/23 52$                     (2)$                   1$                 52$                    

06/09/23 51$                     -$                 1$                 52$                    

06/15/23 153$                   -$                 3$                 156$                  - - - -

TOTAL 343,699$            14,146$           7,014$          364,860$           

% COLLECTED 100.00%

TOTAL OUTSTANDING 0$                      

Non-Ad Valorem Special Assessments - Osceola County Tax Collector

Monthly Collection Distributions

For the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2023

Page 7

Agenda Page #021



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

General Fund

Account Name Bank Name Investment Type Maturity Yield Balance

Checking Account- Operating Truist n/a 0.01% $207,485

Checking Account- Operating Valley National n/a 4.75% $1,283,741

Subtotal $1,491,226

Money Market Account Bank United MMA n/a 5.15% $1,549,159

Subtotal $1,549,159

Total General Fund $3,040,385

June 30, 2023

Cash and Investment Report

Page 8

Agenda Page #022



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Water & Sewer Fund

Account Name Bank Name Investment Type Maturity Yield Balance

Checking Account- Operating Truist n/a 0.01% $1,317,265

Checking Account- Operating Valley National n/a 4.75% $84,285

Subtotal $1,401,550

Money Market Account Bank United MMA n/a 5.15% $1,271,642

Money Market Account Valley National MMA n/a 4.75% $307,368

Subtotal $1,579,010

Series 2012 Connection Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $5,433,082

Series 2012 Maintenance Reserve US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $1,842,547

Series 2012 Operating Reserve Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $1,007,533

Series 2012 Reserve Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $489,160

Series 2012 Revenue Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $6,501

Series 2012 Sinking Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $160,000

Series 2012 Surplus Fund US Bank US Bank Gcts n/a 3.80% $19,780

Subtotal $8,958,603

Treasury Bills (3 months) Valley National T-Bills 10/05/23 5.20% $2,750,000

Treasury Bills (6 months) Valley National T-Bills 01/04/24 5.34% $500,000

Subtotal $3,250,000

Total Water / Sewer Fund $15,189,163

June 30, 2023

Cash and Investment Report

Page 9

Agenda Page #023



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District General Fund

Posting Date Payment Month Amount 

10/31/2022 October $35,862.05

11/30/2022 November $31,268.16

12/31/2022 December $33,631.18

1/31/2023 January $40,789.85

2/28/2023 February $38,897.43

3/31/2023 March $38,189.40

4/30/2023 April $38,130.24

5/31/2023 May $38,729.52

6/30/2023 June (Accrued) $40,000.00

Total $335,497.83

Right-of-Way Fees Electricity

June 30, 2023

Page 10

Agenda Page #024



Pymt

Type

Check /

ACH No.
Date

Payee

Type
Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount 

Paid

BEGININNG BALANCE BALANCE B/F 133500 54,949.84

Check 10/04/22 Vendor CELEBRATION PAYMENT DUE TO ECDD THRU 06/30/22 DUKE ENERGY Electricity - General 133500 ($32,984.93)

ACH ACH110 10/11/22 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 101122ACH BILL PRD 9/8-10/6/22 Electricity - General 133500 $10,995.19

ACH ACH110 10/11/22 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 101122ACH BILL PRD 10/7-11/4/22 Electricity - General 133500 $10,920.99

ACH ACH111 11/30/22 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 113022ACH BILL PRD 10/27-11/28/22 Electricity - General 133500 $77.40

ACH ACH112 12/09/22 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 120922ACH BILL PRD 11/5-12/6/22 Electricity - General 133500 $10,920.99

ACH ACH113 12/30/22 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 123022ACH BILL PRD 11/29-12/28/22 Electricity - General 133500 $76.60

ACH ACH114 01/11/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 011123ACH BILL PRD 12/7/22-1/6/23 Electricity - General 133500 $13,111.72

ACH ACH115 02/01/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 012723ACH BILL PRD 12/29/22-1/26/23 Electricity - General 133500 $11,767.72

Check 02/17/23 Vendor CELEBRATION PAYMENT DUE TO ECDD THRU 09/30/22 DUKE ENERGY Electricity - General 133500 ($33,084.62)

ACH ACH116 02/28/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 032023ACH BILL PRD 1/27-2/24/23 Electricity - General 133500 $13,190.89

ACH ACH117 03/30/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 033023ACH BILL PRD 2/25-3/28/23 Electricity - General 133500 $13,169.58

ACH ACH118 04/30/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 050823ACH BILL PRD 3/29-4/26/23 Electricity - General 133500 $13,935.15

Check 05/12/23 Vendor CELEBRATION PAYMENT DUE TO ECDD THRU 03/31/23 DUKE ENERGY Electricity - General 133500 ($38,128.19)

Check 05/19/23 Vendor CELEBRATION PAYMENT DUE TO ECDD THRU 12/31/22 DUKE ENERGY Electricity - General 133500 ($35,107.70)

ACH ACH119 06/01/23 Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 052523ACH BILL PRD 4/26-5/24/23 Electricity - General 133500 $13,935.29

Vendor DUKE ENERGY-ACH 062923ACH BILL PRD 5/25-6/27/24 Electricity - General 133500 $13,000.00

Net Account Total 40,745.92

Due To/From Other Districts

For the Period from 10/1/22 to 6/30/23

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Page 11

Agenda Page #025



Subsection 5C 
 

Check Register 

Agenda Page #026



5/1/23-6/30/23

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Check Register 

Agenda Page #027



Fund 

No.

Check / 

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

GENERAL FUND - 001

001 004490 05/15/23 ENTERPRISE CDD 050523-1 TRFR FROM GF TO EF Due From Other Funds 131000 $17,002.25
001 004491 06/08/23 ENTERPRISE CDD 060123-5 TRFR FROM GF TO EF Due From Other Funds 131000 $140,143.65
001 012419 05/04/23 BACKYARD DESIGN PROS LLC 160 SIDEWALKS 2YDS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $315.00
001 012420 05/04/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. M23040296 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 4/21/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $45.00
001 012420 05/04/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. M23040297 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 4/19/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $45.00
001 012421 05/04/23 BOARDTRONICS, INC. 8951749 IRR STATION R&M-Irrigation 546041-53901 $399.99
001 012422 05/04/23 CELEBRATION CDD               050123-CAM MAY 2023 CAM O&M-Maintenance Building 546907-53901 $602.00
001 012423 05/04/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 351244 FASTENERS R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $8.97
001 012424 05/04/23 CELEBRATION SANITATION SERVICES, LLC 103875 REFUSE REMOVAL MAY 2023 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53901 $101.62
001 012425 05/04/23 CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO 001028047 MOSQUITO MGMT APR 2023 Contracts-Pest Control 534125-53001 $1,146.41
001 012429 05/04/23 K & D CONCRETE INC 243 CONCRETE-SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $10,300.00
001 012432 05/10/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. M23040446 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 04/25/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $215.00
001 012434 05/10/23 FEDEX                         8-117-72248 APRIL 2023 POSTAGE - MGT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $38.44
001 012438 05/16/23 BACKYARD DESIGN PROS LLC 179 CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $315.00
001 012439 05/16/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. 22071266 DISINFECTION BYPRODUCTS 07/22/2022 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $136.00
001 012439 05/16/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. M22090256 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 09/15/22 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $60.00
001 012439 05/16/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. M23050165 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 05/09/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $215.00
001 012440 05/16/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 262 MAY 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Landscape 534050-53901 $8,333.33
001 012440 05/16/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 262 MAY 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Irrigation 534073-53901 $1,333.33
001 012440 05/16/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 262 MAY 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Trash & Debris Removal 534121-53901 $166.67
001 012440 05/16/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 262 MAY 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Tree & Shrub Maintenance 534147-53901 $1,666.67
001 012440 05/16/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 348 INSTALLATION OF SPRING MULCH R&M-Other Landscape 546036-53901 $2,450.00
001 012443 05/16/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 353495 MAINT SUPPLIES COMMON AREA R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $104.32
001 012443 05/16/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 353858 MAINT SUPPLIES R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $220.46
001 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,044.67
001 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53901 $14,888.67
001 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-51301 $98.58
001 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $13.28
001 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES Misc-Records Storage 549069-51301 $840.00
001 012475 05/16/23 REPUBLIC SERVICES #690 0690-000687981 REFUSE REMOVAL APRIL 2023 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53901 $275.00
001 012479 05/16/23 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLA PS-INV1022752 MONTHLY BILLING APRIL 2023 Communication - Telephone 541003-51301 $34.13
001 012482 05/23/23 CELEBRATION CDD               05172023 SIGNAGE R&M-Signage 546085-54101 $2,746.15
001 012486 05/30/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. 23040593 MONTHLY COMPOSITE 4/11/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $378.00
001 012487 05/30/23 CELEBRATION CDD               051723 INSTALL POSTS Misc-Contingency 549900-53901 $2,000.00
001 012488 05/30/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 354920 RAKE LEAF /POLE POOL R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $48.98
001 012488 05/30/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 354921 BLEACH CONC AUTDOOR R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $35.97
001 012488 05/30/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 355111 AIR HOSE R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $42.99
001 012488 05/30/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 355158 PLUG 1/4 IND 1/4FNPT BT R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $3.99
001 012491 05/30/23 FACILITIES PRO-SWEEP 4416 STREET SWEEPING 5/18/23 R&M-Road Cleaning 546080-54101 $354.66
001 012492 05/30/23 FEDEX                         8-132-64572 POSTAGE 5/5/23 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $20.50
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,044.67
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53901 $14,888.67
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Info Technology 531020-51301 $98.58
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $10.08
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES Misc-Records Storage 549069-51301 $840.00
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $269.52
001 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES FENCE REPAIRS 549900-53901 $2,746.79
001 012504 06/02/23 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY HOLDING, LLC 127986397-002 IRRIGATION REPAIRS R&M-Irrigation 546041-53901 $177.96
001 012505 06/02/23 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY HOLDING, LLC 127986397-001 IRRIGATION REPAIRS R&M-Irrigation 546041-53901 $793.92
001 012506 06/02/23 SITEX AQUATICS LLC 7613 APRIL 2023 LAKE MAINT Contracts-Aquatic Control 534067-53001 $410.00
001 012507 06/02/23 SITEX AQUATICS LLC 7327 MAY 2023 LAKE MAINT Contracts-Aquatic Control 534067-53001 $410.00
001 012509 06/08/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 560 JUNE 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Landscape 534050-53901 $8,333.33
001 012509 06/08/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 560 JUNE 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Irrigation 534073-53901 $1,333.33
001 012509 06/08/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 560 JUNE 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Trash & Debris Removal 534121-53901 $166.67
001 012509 06/08/23 BENCHMARK LANDSCAPING 560 JUNE 2023 LANDSCAPE MAINT Contracts-Tree & Shrub Maintenance 534147-53901 $1,666.67
001 012510 06/08/23 CELEBRATION CDD               060123-CAM JUNE 2023 CAM O&M-Maintenance Building 546907-53901 $602.00
001 012511 06/08/23 CELEBRATION SANITATION SERVICES, LLC 103896 JUNE 2023 SVCS Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53901 $101.62
001 012512 06/08/23 CLARKE ENVIRONMENTAL MOSQUITO 001028732 MOSQUITO MGMT SVC MAY 2023 Contracts-Pest Control 534125-53001 $1,146.41
001 012516 06/08/23 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TR ANC-10072-2223 FMIT - STORAGE TANK LIABILITY INSURANCE Insurance - General Liability 545002-51301 $335.33
001 012518 06/08/23 KUTAK ROCK LLP 3225790 GEN COUNSEL THRU APR 2023 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $2,000.00

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 05/01/2023 to 06/30/2023

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Page 1

Agenda Page #028



Fund 

No.

Check / 

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 05/01/2023 to 06/30/2023

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

001 012523 06/20/23 BACKYARD DESIGN PROS LLC 191 CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $385.00
001 012523 06/20/23 BACKYARD DESIGN PROS LLC 187 CONCRETE FOR SIDEWALKS R&M-Sidewalks 546084-53901 $385.00
001 012524 06/20/23 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL, INC. 23051302 MONTHLY COMPOSITE 5/22/23-05/23/23 Contracts-Water Quality 534048-53001 $513.00
001 012526 06/20/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 357694 ULTRA SPEC EXT SATIN-BASE R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $149.99
001 012526 06/20/23 CELEBRATION HARDWARE 357932 BLEACH CONCENTRATE OUTDOOR R&M-Common Area 546016-53901 $35.97
001 012529 06/20/23 FACILITIES PRO-SWEEP 4484 STREET SWEEPING 6/15/23 R&M-Road Cleaning 546080-54101 $354.66
001 012532 06/20/23 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TR INV-38324-F9BI 4TH INSTALL BILLING FY 22/23 Insurance - General Liability 545002-51301 $3,953.75
001 012536 06/20/23 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLA PS-INV1023773 MONTHLY BILLING MAY 2023 Communication - Telephone 541003-51301 $34.13
001 012539 06/29/23 FEDEX                         8-168-37900 JUNE 2023 POSTAGE Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $12.91
001 ACH136 05/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 050823 ACH BILL PRD 3/29-4/26/23 Electricity - General 543006-53901 $44.56
001 ACH136 05/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 050823 ACH BILL PRD 3/29-4/26/23 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-54101 $1,502.55
001 ACH137 06/02/23 REPUBLIC SERVICES #690 0690-000691319 ACH REFUSE REMOVAL MAY 2023 Utility - Refuse Removal 543020-53901 $308.52
001 ACH138 06/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 052523 ACH BILL PRD 4/26-5/24/23 Electricity - General 543006-53901 $44.61
001 ACH138 06/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 052523 ACH BILL PRD 4/26-5/24/23 Electricity - Streetlighting 543013-54101 $1,502.55

Fund Total $262,792.43

WATER & SEWER FUND - 401

401 012418 05/04/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5834359 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $4,690.00
401 012422 05/04/23 CELEBRATION CDD               050123-CAM MAY 2023 CAM O&M-Maintenance Building 546907-53901 $602.00
401 012426 05/04/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2109815 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $1,140.00
401 012427 05/04/23 ENTERPRISE CDD, C/O US BANK, N.A. 050123-3 TRFR PRINCIPAL PAYMENT Due From Other Funds 131000 $80,000.00
401 012428 05/04/23 ENTERPRISE CDD, C/O US BANK, N.A. 050123-4 TRFR CONNECTION FEES Due From Other Funds 131000 $66,053.02
401 012430 05/04/23 KUTAK ROCK LLP 3209786 GEN COUNSEL THRU MAR 2023 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $762.50
401 012431 05/04/23 SMART CITY  TELECOM           050123-5499 BILL PRD MAY 2023 Internet-Liftstations 543080-53901 $2,262.71
401 012433 05/10/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2110389 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $760.00
401 012433 05/10/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2110710 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $19,060.60
401 012435 05/16/23 ADAM ENFROY 041723-1663 703 EAGLE WOODS TRAIL - WR Deposits 220000 $83.70
401 012436 05/16/23 ALESSANDRA GUIMARAES 02272023-8185 902 BLUE SAGE ST WR Deposits 220000 $127.73
401 012437 05/16/23 AMY MCCORD 022723-1039 719 EAST LAWN DR 1/13/23-2/10/23 Deposits 220000 $476.99
401 012441 05/16/23 BLANCA ESPINOSA 020123-4067 930 JASMINE ST - WR Deposits 220000 $204.24
401 012442 05/16/23 BLAS DROTAR 030323-4568 815 RUNNER OAK ST - WR Deposits 220000 $204.13
401 012444 05/16/23 CODY & SHERRI CRAWFORD 021323-0635 711 EASTLAWN DR - WR Deposits 220000 $187.60
401 012445 05/16/23 DAVID MARCANTEL 021623-0947 219 ACADIA TERR - WR Deposits 220000 $322.72
401 012446 05/16/23 DAWN KIRSTEN CIPRI 041723-4277 1026 JEATER BEND DR - WR Deposits 220000 $133.34
401 012447 05/16/23 DOUGLAS DINGEE 041323-7129 1237 ROYCROFT AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $12.73
401 012448 05/16/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2111406 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $360.00
401 012448 05/16/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2111512 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $2,303.00
401 012449 05/16/23 GAI CONSULTANTS 2187861 ENGG SVCS 3/12-4/8/23 ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $3,762.50
401 012449 05/16/23 GAI CONSULTANTS 2187836 ENGG SVS 3/12-4/8/23 UTILTIY ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $1,670.00
401 012450 05/16/23 GARY & PEGGY BREWER 032723-9649 1336 FLAGSTONE AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $52.02
401 012451 05/16/23 GERALD & LOIS SCHULTZ 021523-8553 1032 NASH DR - WR Deposits 220000 $141.09
401 012452 05/16/23 GUY LUTZ 032723-3747 722 EASTLAWN DR - WR Deposits 220000 $280.71
401 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93612 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES WATER/SEWER ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,112.08
401 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93612 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES WATER/SEWER ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53901 $32,992.17
401 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 93610 APRIL 2023 MGMT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $8.86
401 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 94298 APRIL 2023 OPERATIONS MAINT WORK AUTH WA-RT-MARCH 2023 546160-53901 $7,665.78
401 012453 05/16/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 94298 APRIL 2023 OPERATIONS MAINT CONTRACTUAL SVCS 534138-53901 $95,456.04
401 012454 05/16/23 JAMES HENSON 031323-0121 1847 ISLAND VILLAGE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $80.40
401 012455 05/16/23 JEFFREY TODD 02272023-0415 603 CANNE PL - WR Deposits 220000 $162.15
401 012456 05/16/23 JF & A HOLDING LLC 022723-7376 902 WEST PARK DR - WR Deposits 220000 $93.51
401 012457 05/16/23 JIMMY & LAURA KRAUS 050123-6542 1434 STICKLEY AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $2.13
401 012458 05/16/23 JOHN & RUBY ELLINGTON 031323-0440 1064 NASH DR - WR Deposits 220000 $151.34
401 012459 05/16/23 JOSH HUNTSMAN 041123-6609 926 WEST PARK DR - WR Deposits 220000 $70.97
401 012460 05/16/23 KRISTIN H LAO 042123-5213 1405 CRAFTSMAN AVE E - WR Deposits 220000 $421.42
401 012461 05/16/23 LAURE DEJEANT 020123-8575 1021 BANKS ROSE ST - WR Deposits 220000 $165.58
401 012462 05/16/23 MARCO & THERESA RICHIONE 030923-8969 1436 STICKLEY AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $115.24
401 012463 05/16/23 MARK PERSAUD 032923-5528 1115 MOSAIC DR - WR Deposits 220000 $22.77
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 031523-3110 7456 ESTUARY LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $106.17
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-7110 2290 CELEBRATION BLVD - WR Deposits 220000 $385.54
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-3410 7468 ESTUARY LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $108.40

Page 2

Agenda Page #029



Fund 

No.

Check / 

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 05/01/2023 to 06/30/2023

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-3510 7472 ESTUARY LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $80.90
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 031523-7610 7548 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $97.46
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 031523-7910 7434 BARRIER COVE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $108.47
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 031523-8010 7430 BARRIER COVE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $228.96
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-7010 2101 CELEBRATION BLD - WR Deposits 220000 $706.19
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-3910 7413 LEVEE LN - WR Deposits 220000 $633.93
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-3010 7452 ESTUARY LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $92.45
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-9010 7409 INLET POINT - WR Deposits 220000 $125.30
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 021323-8110 7426 BARRIER COVE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $298.90
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040523-1902 1805 COASTAL CT - WR Deposits 220000 $224.13
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 040323-8510 7410 BARRIER COVE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $2.33
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041723-7510 7552 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $36.88
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041323-9710 1855 ISLAND VILLAGE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $653.05
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041323-0510 18111 BEACH RIDGE RD - WR Deposits 220000 $630.01
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041323-8210 7422 BARRIER COVE WAY - WR Deposits 220000 $197.15
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041723-7010 7573 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP Deposits 220000 $67.03
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041723-3210 7460 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $63.93
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041723-0010 7500 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP - WR Deposits 220000 $86.08
401 012466 05/16/23 MATTAMY HOMES 041723-7410 7556 ESTUARY LAKE LOOP Deposits 220000 $114.62
401 012467 05/16/23 MATTHEW FOLLIS 041723-3534 806 ROSA ST - WR Deposits 220000 $163.38
401 012468 05/16/23 MEGAN ASTOR 032723-4245 1200 CELEBRATION AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $10.50
401 012469 05/16/23 MYAVA RODRIGUEZ 021523-7783 1200 DOWNEY PL - WR Deposits 220000 $86.16
401 012470 05/16/23 NADIA EGGERS 022723-7064 811 VERANDA PL - WR Deposits 220000 $192.16
401 012471 05/16/23 PAMELA J MURPHY 041123-4169 518 LONGMEADOW ST - WR Deposits 220000 $126.69
401 012472 05/16/23 PEDRO BELLINOMINI CASTILLO 031323-3771 611 TRUMPET PL - WR Deposits 220000 $204.56
401 012473 05/16/23 PETER STOK 030923-3735 722 EASTLAWN DR - WR Deposits 220000 $83.54
401 012474 05/16/23 PRISCILLA MARTINEZ & JOSE ALBA 041323-5046 1352 PONCE DR - WR Deposits 220000 $169.79
401 012476 05/16/23 ROBERT CANT 042123-7412 185 LONGVIEW AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $167.75
401 012477 05/16/23 ROBERT FORST 041323-4576 1114 RUSH ST - WR Deposits 220000 $140.81
401 012478 05/16/23 SHERRIE SCHALLHORN 04042023-4598 835 LAKE EVALYN DR WR Deposits 220000 $46.38
401 012479 05/16/23 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLA PS-INV1022752 MONTHLY BILLING APRIL 2023 Communication - Telephone 541003-51301 $102.41
401 012480 05/16/23 TOHO Water Authority 050123-12799 BILL PRD 4/1-5/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $18,447.16
401 012480 05/16/23 TOHO Water Authority 050123-12799 BILL PRD 4/1-5/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $125,509.54
401 012480 05/16/23 TOHO Water Authority 050123-12799 BILL PRD 4/1-5/1/23 Contracts-Bulk Wastewater 534006-53301 $211,750.13
401 012480 05/16/23 TOHO Water Authority 050123-12799 BILL PRD 4/1-5/1/23 Contracts-Bulk Potable Water 534005-53301 $73,426.08
401 012480 05/16/23 TOHO Water Authority 050123-12799 BILL PRD 4/1-5/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $2.65
401 012481 05/16/23 WILLIAM STANSELL 021623-7463 105 ACADIA TERR - WR Deposits 220000 $43.98
401 012483 05/23/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2111643 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $225.00
401 012484 05/30/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5864180 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $1,425.00
401 012484 05/30/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5864183 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $2,500.00
401 012484 05/30/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5864177 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $3,015.00
401 012484 05/30/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5864176 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $2,300.00
401 012484 05/30/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5870958 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $2,680.00
401 012485 05/30/23 ARIADNA SANCHEZ 041923-4644 101 GRACE AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $133.49
401 012489 05/30/23 CHRISTIAN & CATHERINE JENSEN 050323-7503 1016 WILD ELM ST - WR Deposits 220000 $115.19
401 012490 05/30/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2111754 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $14,835.00
401 012490 05/30/23 EMPIRE PIPE & SUPPLY CO 2111764 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $7,993.96
401 012492 05/30/23 FEDEX                         8-132-64572 POSTAGE 5/5/23 Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $13.66
401 012493 05/30/23 FRANK FORREST 042523-8146 828 SPRING PARK LOOP WR Deposits 220000 $123.42
401 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95145 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting Serv 531027-51201 $5,112.08
401 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95145 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES ProfServ-Field Management 531016-53901 $32,992.17
401 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $6.72
401 012494 05/30/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95144 MAY 2023 MGMT FEES Printing and Binding 547001-51301 $179.68
401 012495 05/30/23 ISABEL PERAGALLO 041723-1385 740 OAK SHADOWS RD - WR Deposits 220000 $105.79
401 012496 05/30/23 JAMES A LOVEGREN 042523-2645 1154 CELEBRATION AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $95.53
401 012497 05/30/23 LOYAL PYCZYNSKI 041323-9437 770 OAK SHADOWS RD - WR Deposits 220000 $166.18
401 012498 05/30/23 MATTAMY HOMES 051523-0310 7404 LEVEE LN 05/08/23 WR Deposits 220000 $44.81
401 012499 05/30/23 RITA CULMONE 033123-3788 619 MULBERRY AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $100.79
401 012500 05/30/23 STEWART & STEVENSON 90046444 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $810.00
401 012501 05/30/23 SUSAN FLEMING 041323-6732 1430 STICKLEY AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $78.14
401 012502 05/30/23 THOMAS BOGUCKI 031523-4222 1598 RESOLUTE ST - WR Deposits 220000 $91.33
401 012503 05/30/23 ZOE KINDLEY 031523-8451 1003 FALLING LEAF ST - WR Deposits 220000 $67.19
401 012508 06/08/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5881031 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $4,690.00

Page 3

Agenda Page #030



Fund 

No.

Check / 

ACH No.
Date Payee Invoice No. Payment Description Invoice / GL Description G/L Account #

Amount

Paid

(Sorted by Check / ACH No.)

Payment Register by Fund

For the Period from 05/01/2023 to 06/30/2023

ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

401 012510 06/08/23 CELEBRATION CDD               060123-CAM JUNE 2023 CAM O&M-Maintenance Building 546907-53901 $602.00
401 012514 06/08/23 ENTERPRISE CDD, C/O US BANK, N.A. 060123-3 TRFR TO US BANK PRINCIPAL PAYMENT Due From Other Funds 131000 $80,000.00
401 012515 06/08/23 ENTERPRISE CDD, C/O US BANK, N.A. 060123-4 TRFR TO CONNECTION FEES THRU APRIL 2023 Due From Other Funds 131000 $60,945.37
401 012516 06/08/23 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TR ANC-10072-2223 FMIT - STORAGE TANK LIABILITY INSURANCE Insurance - General Liability 545002-51301 $335.33
401 012517 06/08/23 GAI CONSULTANTS 2188982 ENGG SVCS THRU MAY 6, 2023 ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $4,910.00
401 012518 06/08/23 KUTAK ROCK LLP 3225789 LEGAL SVCS THRU APRIL 2023 ProfServ-Legal Services 531023-51401 $1,192.50
401 012522 06/20/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5883270 REPAIR C-LIFT STATION R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $875.00
401 012522 06/20/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5890672 REPAIR C-LIFT STATION R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $275.00
401 012522 06/20/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5892701 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $3,757.50
401 012522 06/20/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5892705 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $3,350.00
401 012522 06/20/23 ALL FLORIDA SEPTIC 5897684 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $6,042.00
401 012525 06/20/23 CARYN DESCOMBES 060523-4237 1200 CELEBRATION AVE - WR Deposits 220000 $119.49
401 012527 06/20/23 DANIEL & KATIE LOANE 051923-7158 1550 CASTILE ST - WR Deposits 220000 $73.69
401 012528 06/20/23 ENTERPRISE CDD, C/O US BANK, N.A. 060923-1 TRFR TO CONNECTION FEES Due From Other Funds 131000 $24,207.19
401 012530 06/20/23 FEGHALI FAMILY LAND TRUST 051623-0320 1363 PONCE DR - WR Deposits 220000 $125.66
401 012531 06/20/23 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC. 2013620 UTILITY MAINT R&M-Utility Maintenance 546160-53901 $2,285.00
401 012532 06/20/23 FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TR INV-38324-F9BI 4TH INSTALL BILLING FY 22/23 Insurance - General Liability 545002-51301 $3,953.75
401 012533 06/20/23 GAI CONSULTANTS 2188978 ENGG SVCS THRU MAY 2023 ProfServ-Engineering 531013-51501 $2,802.84
401 012534 06/20/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95991 MAY 2023 OPERATIONS MAINT WORK AUTH WA-RT-MARCH 2023 546160-53901 $7,280.00
401 012534 06/20/23 INFRAMARK, LLC 95991 MAY 2023 OPERATIONS MAINT CONTRACTUAL SVCS 534138-53901 $95,456.04
401 012535 06/20/23 MATTAMY HOMES 052323-2810 1855 COASTAL CT - WR Deposits 220000 $66.05
401 012536 06/20/23 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLA PS-INV1023773 MONTHLY BILLING MAY 2023 Communication - Telephone 541003-51301 $102.41
401 012537 06/20/23 TOHO Water Authority 060123-12799 BILL PRD 5/1-6/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $18,447.16
401 012537 06/20/23 TOHO Water Authority 060123-12799 BILL PRD 5/1-6/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $122,815.80
401 012537 06/20/23 TOHO Water Authority 060123-12799 BILL PRD 5/1-6/1/23 Contracts-Bulk Wastewater 534006-53301 $208,270.71
401 012537 06/20/23 TOHO Water Authority 060123-12799 BILL PRD 5/1-6/1/23 Contracts-Bulk Potable Water 534005-53301 $74,996.50
401 012537 06/20/23 TOHO Water Authority 060123-12799 BILL PRD 5/1-6/1/23 Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 534064-53301 $2.65
401 012538 06/20/23 U.S. BANK 6937545 TRUSTEE FEES - 5/1/23-4/30/24 Trustee Fees 5/1/23-9/30/23 531045-51301 $1,419.83
401 012538 06/20/23 U.S. BANK 6937545 TRUSTEE FEES - 5/1/23-4/30/24 Trustee Fees 10/1/23-4/30/24 155000 $1,987.76
401 012539 06/29/23 FEDEX                         8-168-37900 JUNE 2023 POSTAGE Postage and Freight 541006-51301 $8.61
401 ACH136 05/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 050823 ACH BILL PRD 3/29-4/26/23 Electricity - General 543006-53901 $11,079.58
401 ACH136 05/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 050823 ACH BILL PRD 3/29-4/26/23 Due From Other Districts 133500 $13,935.15
401 ACH138 06/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 052523 ACH BILL PRD 4/26-5/24/23 Electricity - General 543006-53901 $10,927.41
401 ACH138 06/19/23 DUKE ENERGY-ACH 052523 ACH BILL PRD 4/26-5/24/23 Due From Other Districts 133500 $13,935.29

401 012519 06/19/23 JASON D. HERRICK PAYROLL June 19, 2023 Payroll Posting $184.70

401 012520 06/19/23 PAUL T. JOHNSON PAYROLL June 19, 2023 Payroll Posting $184.70

401 012521 06/19/23 GREGG E. HARKNESS PAYROLL June 19, 2023 Payroll Posting $184.70

Fund Total $1,620,932.82

Total Checks Paid $1,883,725.25

Page 4

Agenda Page #031



Section 6 
 

Budget Hearing 
 

Agenda Page #032



Subsection 6A 
 

Proposed Budget 

Agenda Page #033



ENTERPRISE

Community Development District

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget

Fiscal Year 2024

Prepared by:

Version 3: Modified Tentative Budget

(Printed 8/2/23 at 10:48 AM)

Agenda Page #034



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

Page #

OPERATING BUDGET

General Fund

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances …………………………….. 1-2

Exhibit A - Allocation of Fund Balances …………………………………………………………………. 3

Budget Narrative …………………………………………………………………………………………… 4-9

FY 2024-FY 2023 Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Summary ………………………………….. 10

Water & Sewer Fund

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets ……………………………….. 11-12

Amortization Schedule ………………………………………………………………………………… 13

Budget Narrative …………………………………………………………………………………………… 14-17

Table of Contents

Agenda Page #035



Fiscal Year 2024

Enterprise
Community Development District

Operating Budget

Agenda Page #036



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

 
General Fund

ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL ANNUAL

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU JUL - PROJECTED BUDGET 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 JUNE-2023 SEP-2023 FY 2023 FY 2024

Interest - Investments 6,609$            8,440$            2,807$            66,921$          22,307$          89,228$          11,100$           

Right-of-Way Fees 291,629          364,487          330,000          335,498          111,833          447,331          330,000           

Interest - Tax Collector -                      7                     -                      185                 -                      185                 -                        

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 364,851          364,867          364,861          364,860          -                      364,860          364,861           

Special Assmnts- Discounts (13,731)          (14,115)          (14,594)          (14,146)          -                      (14,146)          (14,594)            

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 392                 9,305              -                      53                   -                      53                   -                        

TOTAL REVENUES 649,750       732,991       683,074       753,371       134,140       887,511       691,367         

EXPENDITURES

Administrative

P/R-Board of Supervisors 3,400              3,000              2,400              1,500              600                 2,100              3,000                

FICA Taxes 260                 230                 184                 115                 46                   161                 230                   

ProfServ-Engineering 38,248            31,618            23,000            1,331              21,669            23,000            23,000              

ProfServ-Info Technology 1,183              1,183              1,183              887                 296                 1,183              1,300                

ProfServ-Legal Services 9,250              7,192              10,000            7,036              2,964              10,000            10,000              

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 57,061            58,773            60,536            45,402            15,134            60,536            63,000              

ProfServ-Property Appraiser 127                 -                      200                 163                 37                   200                 200                   

Auditing Services 4,800              4,800              5,000              4,800              -                  4,800              5,000                

Communication - Telephone 155                 150                 750                 319                 410                 729                 1,700                

Postage and Freight 275                 347                 750                 239                 511                 750                 500                   

Insurance - General Liability 14,177            14,410            21,757            16,150            -                  16,150            19,000              

Printing and Binding 694                 1,263              1,200              363                 837                 1,200              500                   

Legal Advertising 487                 305                 500                 476                 159                 635                 3,000                

Misc-Records Storage -                  -                      -                      3,360              -                  3,360              -                    

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 4,513              4,448              7,297              7,014              -                  7,014              7,297                

Misc-Contingency 580                 20,511            1,989              360                 1,629              1,989              1,000                

Misc-Web Hosting 592                 1,743              1,550              787                 763                 1,550              1,600                

Office Supplies 25                   42                   350                 -                      350                 350                 400                   

Annual District Filing Fee 175                 175                 175                 175                 -                  175                 175                   

Total Administrative 136,002          150,190          138,821          90,477            45,404            135,881          140,902           

Other Public Safety

Contracts-Sheriff 17,594            21,764            15,000            -                      15,000            15,000            20,000              

Total Other Public Safety 17,594            21,764            15,000            -                      15,000            15,000            20,000              

Physical Environment

Contracts-Water Quality 12,804            18,244            17,035            7,458              8,066              15,524            18,000              

Contracts-Aquatic Control 4,920              4,510              4,920              3,690              1,230              4,920              5,000                

Contracts-Pest Control 13,757            13,757            13,757            10,318            3,439              13,757            14,000              

R&M-Wetland -                  -                      1,000              -                      1,000              1,000              500                   

Total Physical Environment 31,481            36,511            36,712            21,466            13,735            35,201            37,500              

Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt

R&M-Road Drainage -                  875                 6,500              -                      1,625              1,625              7,000                

Total Flood Control/Stormwater Mgmt -                      875                 6,500              -                      1,625              1,625              7,000                

REVENUES

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Fiscal Year 2024 Modified Tentative Budget

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 Page 1

Agenda Page #037



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

 
General Fund

ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL ANNUAL

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU JUL - PROJECTED BUDGET 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 JUNE-2023 SEP-2023 FY 2023 FY 2024

Summary of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Fiscal Year 2024 Modified Tentative Budget

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 148,990          173,460          178,664          133,998          44,666            178,664          185,000           

Contracts-Landscape 94,227            116,744          100,000          75,000            25,000            100,000          100,000           

Contracts-Irrigation 16,701            12,709            16,000            12,000            4,000              16,000            16,000              

Contracts-Trees & Trimming 17,098            12,991            -                      -                      -                  -                  -                    

Contracts - Trees & Shrub Maintenance -                  -                      20,000            15,000            5,000              20,000            20,000              

Contracts-Other Landscape 20,124            15,793            -                      -                      -                  -                  -                    

Contracts-Pine Straw -                  -                      34,300            -                      34,300            34,300            35,000              

Contracts - Trash & Debris Removal -                  # -                      2,000              1,500              500                 2,000              2,000                

Electricity - General 451                 384                 2,000              431                 144                 575                 600                   

Utility - Refuse Removal 4,118              3,805              5,543              2,892              789                 3,681              3,200                

R&M-Boardwalks -                  -                      12,500            -                      3,125              3,125              12,000              

R&M-Common Area 3,909              15,261            12,000            2,117              706                 2,823              12,000              

R&M-Other Landscape 6,203              13,631            15,000            7,300              2,433              9,733              15,000              

R&M-Irrigation 4,855              12,310            10,000            3,702              1,234              4,936              10,000              

R&M-Sidewalks 11,003            80,693            15,000            39,320            13,107            52,427            15,000              

R&M-Hardscape Cleaning -                  1,500              7,000              -                      1,750              1,750              7,000                

R&M-Painting 633                 806                 1,000              -                      250                 250                 1,000                

R&M-Maintenance Building 7,224              7,224              7,224              5,418              1,806              7,224              8,000                

Misc-Contingency 13,691            16,466            15,000            5,327              3,750              9,077              10,000              -                  -                    

Total Field 349,227          483,777          453,231          304,005          142,559          446,564          451,800           

Road and Street Facilities

Electricity - Streetlights 11,112            11,174            13,000            15,169            5,056              20,225            15,000              

R&M-Road Cleaning 10,640            4,256              11,704            3,192              1,064              4,256              7,000                

R&M-Roads & Alleyways -                  -                      2,500              762                 254                 1,016              2,500                

R&M-Signage 195                 -                      2,000              2,746              500                 3,246              2,000                

R&M-Streetlights 2,499              -                      12,500            -                      3,125              3,125              12,500              -                  -                    

Total Road and Street Facilities 24,446            15,430            41,704            21,869            9,999              31,868            39,000              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 558,750       708,547       691,968       437,817       228,322       666,139       696,202         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

Over (under) expenditures 91,000            24,444            (8,894)            315,554          (94,183)          221,371          (4,835)              

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance -                      -                      (8,894)            -                      -                      -                      (4,835)              

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES (USES) -                   -                   (8,894)          -                   -                   -                   (4,835)           

Net change in fund balance 91,000            24,444            (8,894)            315,554          (94,183)          221,371          (4,835)              

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING 2,599,161      2,690,161      2,714,605      2,714,605      -                      2,714,605      2,935,976        

FUND BALANCE, ENDING 2,690,161$  2,714,605$  2,705,711$  3,030,159$  (94,183)$      2,935,976$  2,931,141$    

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 Page 2

Agenda Page #038



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

AVAILABLE FUNDS

Amount

Beginning Fund Balance - Fiscal Year 2024 2,935,976$             

Net Change in Fund Balance - Fiscal Year 2024 (4,835)                     

Reserves - Fiscal Year 2024 Additions -                              

Total Funds Available (Estimated) - 9/30/2024 2,931,141               

Assigned Fund Balance  

Operating Reserve - Operating Capital 174,050                  (1)

Subtotal 174,050                  

Total Allocation of Available Funds 174,050                  

Total Unassigned (undesignated) Cash 2,757,091$             

Notes

(1) Represents approximately 3 months of operating expenditures

ALLOCATION OF AVAILABLE FUNDS

Exhibit "A"

Allocation of Fund Balances

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 Page 3

Agenda Page #039



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

REVENUES 

Interest-Investments 

The District earns interest on the monthly average collected balance for their operating and investment accounts. 

Right-of-Way Fees  

Franchise fees charged to Duke Energy for their use of District right-of-way areas. 

Special Assessments -Tax Collector 

The District will levy a Non-Ad Valorem assessment on all the assessable property within the District in order to pay for the 
operating expenditures during the Fiscal Year. 

 
Special Assessments - Discounts 
Per Section 197.162, Florida Statutes, discounts are allowed for early payment of assessments.  The budgeted amount for 
the fiscal year is calculated at 4% of the anticipated Non-Ad Valorem assessments. 
 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Administrative 
 
P/R - Board of Supervisors 
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes allows for members of the Board of Supervisors to be compensated $200 per meeting 
at which they are in attendance.  The amount for the fiscal year based upon twelve meetings with board members receiving 
payment. This amount is split between the general fund and the water/sewer fund 50/50 % 
 
FICA Taxes 
Payroll taxes on Board of Supervisors compensation.   The budgeted amount for the fiscal year is calculated at 7.65% of 
the total Board of Supervisor’s payroll expenditures. This amount is split between the general fund and the water/sewer 
fund 50/50 % 

 
Professional Services - Engineering 
The District’s Engineer, Gai Consultants provides general engineering services to the District, i.e., attendance and preparation 
for monthly Board meetings, planning and management of the District’s operations and maintenance programs, and review 
and administration of permits. No services are provided by the Program Manager or District Representative. Engineering 
services related to utility systems will be funded by the Enterprise CDD water/sewer fund. Engineering services for permit 
reviews and administration will be paid by third-party developers. 

Professional Services - Information Technology 
All of the District’s financial records and services (i.e., accounts payable, income statements, and records of proceedings) 
are maintained and provided by Inframark - Infrastructure Management Services.  

Professional Services - Legal Services 

The District’s Attorney provides general legal services to the District, i.e., attendance and preparation for monthly Board 
meetings, review of contracts, review of agreements and resolutions, and other research as directed or requested by the 
Board of Supervisors and the District Manager. The general fund and the water/sewer fund share these costs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4

Agenda Page #040



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

Administrative (continued) 

Professional Services - Management Consulting Services 

The District receives Management, Accounting and Administrative services as part of a Management Agreement with 
Inframark-Infrastructure Management Services.  Also included are costs for Information Technology charges to process all 
of the District’s financial activities, i.e. accounts payable, financial statements, budgets, etc., on a main frame computer 
owned by Inframark in accordance with the management contract and the charge for rentals.  The budgeted amount for the 
fiscal year is based on the contracted fees outlined in Exhibit "A" of the Management Agreement. 

Professional Services - Property Appraiser 

The Property Appraiser provides the District with a listing of the legal description of each property parcel within the District 
boundaries, and the names and addresses of the owners of such property.  The District reimburses the Property Appraiser 
for necessary administrative costs incurred to provide this service.  The fiscal year budget for property appraiser costs was 
based on a unit price per parcel.  In prior years, this cost was included in Misc.-Assessment Collection Cost.   

Auditing Services 

The District is required to conduct an annual audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified Public Accounting 
Firm.  The budgeted amount for the fiscal year is based on contracted fees from an existing engagement letter.  This amount 
will be shared 50/50 with the Water and Sewer Fund. 

Communication - Telephone 

The District uses Sunshine State One Call of FLA for phone lines. 

Postage and Freight 

Postage and/or freight used for District mailings including agenda packages, vendor checks and other correspondence.  

Insurance - General Liability 

The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is currently with Florida Municipal Insurance 
Agency.  They specialize in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. The budgeted amount allows for a 
projected increase in the premium due to market uncertainty. 

Printing and Binding 

Copies used in the preparation of agenda packages, required mailings, and other special projects.   

Legal Advertising 

The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings and other public hearings in the Osceola 
News Gazette. The amount for the fiscal year is based on the prior year budget and anticipated advertising needs for the 
year.  

 Miscellaneous - Assessment Collection Costs 

The District reimburses the Osceola County Tax Collector for her or his necessary administrative costs.  Per the Florida 
Statutes, administrative costs shall include, but not be limited to, those costs associated with personnel, forms, supplies, 
data processing, computer equipment, postage, and programming.  The District also compensates the Tax Collector for the 
actual cost of collection or 2% on the amount of special assessments collected and remitted, whichever is greater. The 
fiscal year budget for collection costs was based on a maximum of 2% of the anticipated assessment collections.   

Misc. - Contingency 

Monthly bank charges and any other miscellaneous expenditure that may be incurred during the year.  

5

Agenda Page #041



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

Administrative (continued) 

Miscellaneous-Web Hosting  

This is to comply with state Statutes for posting information on internet and hosting. These amounts will be shared 50/50 
with the Water and Sewer Fund.  

Office Supplies 

Supplies used in the preparation and binding of agenda packages, required mailings, and other special projects. 

Annual District Filing Fee 

The District is required to pay an annual fee of $175 to the Department of Community Affairs. 
 

Public Safety 

Contracts - Sheriff 

An Interlocal agreement with Celebration CDD is in effect to share the Osceola County Sheriff’s Office services to the District. 
The current contract amount is 20% of the cost billed by Celebration CDD.   
 

Physical Environment 
 
Contract - Water Quality   
This amount includes the cost to maintain the Reedy Creek Improvement District’s storm water management systems. The 
District’s share is based on the estimated storm water flows from the District into the RCID system as determined by the 
Drainage Interlocal Agreement between the Districts and the RCID.  

 
 
Contract - Aquatic Control   
The District currently has a contract with Sitex Aquatic LLC, Inc.Scheduled maintenance consists of monthly treatment of 
shoreline grass and brush control, floating & submersed algae vegetation control, additional treatments as required and 
monthly report of all waterways treated for 5 ponds and 4 outfalls and 1 littoral known as EP 7, EP 5B, EP 5A, EP 9 and 
SCE 2 associated with Enterprise CDD. 
 

Contract - Pest Control   
The District currently has a contract with Clarke Environmental Mosquito Management, Inc. Scheduled maintenance 
consists of mosquito spraying along roadways and paths, and mosquito population monitoring in the form of landing rate 
counts and light traps.  

 
 

Service Scheduled Operations 

Landing rate counts 1 night / week 

Light trap nights 1 night / week 

ULV spraying Seasonally, up to nightly 

Larvicide By acre, when and where needed 

Inspections As needed 

 
 

R&M - Wetland   
Maintenance consists of mowing, litter removal, and overgrowth control (trimmed and/or thinned to mimic natural 
succession). 

 

6

Agenda Page #042



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Flood Control/ Storm Water Management    

 
R&M - Road Drainage (Storm Water System)   
Drainage Structures Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance of drainage structures (inlets, pipes, manholes, mitered-end 
sections, headwall, and pond outfall structures) consists of inspection, cleaning and general maintenance. Scheduled 
maintenance of storm water system consists of inspection, sampling, and testing of the storm water pond water quality for 
the purposes of compliance with RCID Interlocal Drainage Agreement. 
 

• Drainage Structures Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance of drainage structures (inlets, pipes, manholes, 
mitered-end sections, headwall, and pond outfall structures) consists of inspection, cleaning and general 
maintenance. Unscheduled maintenance consists of cleaning and repairs of weir skimmers, weir fabriform, 
grates and other related drainage structure elements.  

• Curb and Gutter: Scheduled maintenance consists of curb and gutter replacement of damaged areas.  

• Under drain Maintenance: Scheduled maintenance consists of flushing and cleaning the underdrain pipe 
system.  

 

Field 
 
Professional Services - Field Management    
Includes payroll and overhead costs associated with the services being provided under a management consulting contract 
with Inframark - Infrastructure Management Services. This includes employees utilized in the field and office management 
of all District assets. 
 

Contracts - Landscape (Mowing and Turf Treatment)  
The District currently has a contract with Benchmark Landscaping. Scheduled maintenance consists of mowing, edging, 
blowing, applying pest and disease-control chemicals to sod. Level of service: Average 40 times per year for St. Augustine. 
 

Contract - Irrigation System   
The District currently has a contract with Benchmark Landscaping. Scheduled maintenance consists of regular inspections, 
adjustments to controller and irrigation heads, minor system repairs. 
 

Contract - Trees & Shrub Maintenance   
The District currently has a contract with Benchmark Landscaping. Scheduled maintenance consists of pruning, trimming, 
fertilizing, mulching, and applying pest and disease control chemicals for trees in the CDD rights-of-way and common areas. 
Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacement of damaged, dead or diseased trees. 
 

Contract – Pine Straw    
The District currently has a contract with Benchmark Landscaping. Scheduled maintenance consists of applying pine straw 
as needed.  
 

Contract – Trash & Debris Removal 
The District currently has a contract with Benchmark Landscaping. Scheduled maintenance consists of trash and debis 
removal through out the District.    
 

Electricity - General   
Electricity for accounts with Duke Energy non-utility related functions. [Fees are based on historical costs]. 

 
Utility - Refuse Removal (Trash)   
Scheduled maintenance consists of trash refuse removal. Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacement of damaged 
trash cans. 
 

 

7

Agenda Page #043



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Field (continued) 

  
R&M - Boardwalks   
Scheduled maintenance consists of pressure washing, graffiti removal. Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacement 
of damaged wood, hardware and water seal treatment. 
 

R&M - Common Area    
This Budget line includes: 
   

• Chain Link Fencing: Scheduled maintenance consists of inspection and minor maintenance. Unscheduled 
maintenance consists of repairs and replacement of damaged fence areas.  

• Culvert and Handrail: Scheduled maintenance consists of pressure washing the culvert interior, wing walls, 
handrails, stucco and painted surfaces, touch-ups, and general maintenance.  

• Green Leaf Inc: Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacing damaged sod and adding new sod.  

• Green Leaf Inc: Unscheduled maintenance of hedges and shrubs consists of replacing damaged areas. 

• Green Leaf Inc: Unscheduled maintenance consists of repairs and replacement of system components and 
purchase of irrigation supplies. 

• Green Leaf Inc: Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacement of damaged, dead or diseased trees. 
 

R&M - Other Landscape   
Unscheduled maintenance of hedges and shrubs consists of replacing damaged areas and unscheduled maintenance to 
replacing damaged sod and adding new sod.  
 

R&M - Irrigation    
Scheduled maintenance consists of regular inspections, adjustments to controller and irrigation heads, minor system 
repairs. Unscheduled maintenance consists of repairs and replacement of system components and purchase of irrigation 
supplies. 

 
R&M - Sidewalks   
Unscheduled maintenance consists of graffiti removal, pressure washing, grinding uneven areas, replacement of damaged 
areas and repairs to concrete sidewalk and handicapped ramps 

 
R&M - Hardscape Cleaning   
Scheduled maintenance consists of pressure washing shade structures, boat docks, over looks, PVC fencing, bridges and 
other hardscape. Unscheduled maintenance consists of repairs and replacement of damaged areas. 

 
R&M - Painting   
Scheduled maintenance consists of painting of sign poles and other District facilities. Storage for painting supplies 
 

O&M- Maintenance Building   
This represents building operating costs: such as electricity, water, sewer and reuse, janitorial, landscaping, pest control 
and window cleaning. 
 

Misc-Contingency  
This represents any miscellaneous expenditure that may be incurred during the year. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8

Agenda Page #044



Enterprise  

Community Development District                                                     General Fund  

           
 

Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

         

Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Road and Street Facilities    

 
Electricity - Street Lighting   
Electricity for all street lighting, as billed by Duke Energy. [Fees are based on historical costs for metered use plus anticipated 
future increase]. 
 

R&M - Road Cleaning   
Scheduled maintenance of roadways and alleys consists of sweeping pavement, curb and gutter, and alley areas. 
Unscheduled maintenance by Osceola County consists of pavement section and pavement marking repairs. Private 
roadways will be maintained by Lexin Capital, other private owners, or the Owners Association, as appropriate. Services 
are provided by USA Services. 
 

R&M - Roads & Alleyways   
Guardrail: Scheduled maintenance consists of painting. Vehicular Bridges: Scheduled maintenance consists of pressure 
cleaning stucco surfaces, painted surfaces, concrete bridge deck, exterior bridge beams, and other exterior surfaces.  

 
R&M - Signage   
Scheduled maintenance of signage consists of cleaning and general maintenance. Unscheduled maintenance consists of 
minor repair and replacement, touch-up painting of support posts and brackets, and replacement of vinyl reflective backing 
and lettering. Scheduled maintenance of warning signals consists of replacing bulbs and general electric repairs  

   for golf cart crossing and speed limit warning signals. Unscheduled maintenance consists of replacing damaged signal                                   
   heads and poles. Significant replacements over $500 are funded through maintenance reserves. 

 
R&M - Street Lighting (Maintenance)   
Scheduled maintenance of roadway and pedestrian bollard lighting in common areas consists of replacing bulbs, globes,    
60and minor electrical components, and repairing poles. In addition, maintenance consists of repair, replacement and 
painting of lighting fixtures and poles.   
 
 

9

Agenda Page #045



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

Square O&M O&M per Total O&M per Total
Inrease/     

(Decrease)

Parcel Owner Feet Sq. Ft. /Unit Sq. Ft./Unit O&M Sq. Ft./Unit O&M FY24/23

Lot 2 - Health Center ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM SUNBELT INC          848,000          848,000                0.18820$              159,596.03$         0.18820 159,596.03$         0.00%

Lot 3a 215 CELEBRATION PLACE INC                    130,102          130,102                0.18820$              24,485.57$           0.18820 24,485.57$           0.00%

Lot 4a C-15 OVERTURE DEV GROUP LLC                       127,000          127,000                0.18820$              23,901.76$           0.18820 23,901.76$           0.00%

Lot 7 - C-12 CELEBRATION CO THE                           20,000            20,000                  0.18820$              3,764.06$             0.18820 3,764.06$             0.00%

Lot 9 SMART CITY TELECOMMUNICATIONS                2,025              2,025                    0.18820$              381.11$                0.18820 381.11$                0.00%

Lot 6 - C-18 WATER TOWER RETAIL LLC                       130,000          130,000                0.18820$              24,466.37$           0.18820 24,466.37$           0.00%

Lot 5a INLAND 200 CELEBRATION PLACE                 174,175          174,175                0.18820$              32,780.23$           0.18820 32,780.23$           0.00%

Lot 5b OLD BRIDGE PARK CELEBRATION                  74,676            74,676                  0.18820$              14,054.24$           0.18820 14,054.24$           0.00%

Lot 5c - C-15 INLAND 220 CELEBRATION PLACE                 197,620          197,620                0.18820$              37,192.65$           0.18820 37,192.65$           0.00%

Lot 1a CELEBRATION SELF STORAGE LLC                 8,820              8,820                    0.18820$              1,659.95$             0.18820 1,659.95$             0.00%

Lot 1b COMMUNITY CHURCH AT CELEBRATION INC THE      30,000            30,000                  0.18820$              5,646.09$             0.18820 5,646.09$             0.00%

Lot 3 C -14b ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/ SUNBELT INC         130,000          130,000                0.18820$              24,466.37$           0.18820 24,466.37$           0.00%

Mona Lisa Hotel VARIOUS OWNERS 66,240            240                       51.94399$            12,466.56$           51.94399 12,466.56$           0.00%

Total 1,938,658       364,861.00$         364,861.00$         0.00%

Lot 4b TCC (Lift Station)  -    -   

Lot 8 - C-13 Osceola Co. (Fire Station)  -    -   

Total 1,938,658       364,861$              364,861$              

FY 2024 vs. FY 2023 Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Summary

Operations & Maintenance

FY 2024 FY 2023

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 10

Agenda Page #046



Enterprise
Community Development District

Water and Sewer Fund
Fiscal Year 2024

Agenda Page #047



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

 
Water And Sewer Fund

ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL ANNUAL

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU JUL - PROJECTED BUDGET 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 JUN-2023 SEP-2023 FY 2023 FY 2024

Interest - Investments 17,060$           20,448$                 9,500$                120,147$            40,049$              160,196$          106,520                

Water Revenue 1,816,809        1,876,304              1,765,163           1,715,987           571,996              2,287,983         1,818,118             

Sewer Revenue 3,732,724        4,003,059              3,598,752           3,091,968           1,030,656           4,122,624         3,706,715             

Irrigation Fees 1,561,872        1,670,447              1,501,484           1,269,984           423,328              1,693,312         1,546,529             

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 66,062             44,061                   30,000                220,066              73,355                293,421             30,000                  

Connection Fees - W/S 207,723           2,095,495              750,000              332,852              110,951              443,803             750,000                

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 7,402,250     9,709,814          7,654,899        6,751,004        2,250,335        9,001,339       7,957,881          

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel and Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 600                  400                        2,400                  1,500                  600                     2,100                 2,400                    

FICA Taxes 46                    31                          184                     115                     46                       161                    184                       

ProfServ-Engineering 13,978             61,074                   35,000                66,291                22,097                88,388               35,000                  

ProfServ-Financial Advisor -                   -                             5,000                  -                          5,000                  5,000                 5,000                    

ProfServ-Legal Services 16,014             27,678                   16,000                4,048                  11,952                16,000               16,000                  

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 62,000             59,558                   61,345                46,009                15,336                61,345               64,000                  

ProfServ-Trustee Fees 4,055               1,988                     4,055                  4,827                  -                      4,827                 4,055                    

Auditing Services 4,800               4,800                     5,000                  4,800                  -                      4,800                 5,000                    

Travel and Per Diem -                   13                          -                          -                          -                      -                     -                        

Communication - Telephone -                   -                             600                     954                     318                     1,272                 600                       

Postage and Freight 275                  -                             500                     159                     341                     500                    500                       

Insurance - General Liability 13,511             15,089                   18,415                16,150                -                      16,150               18,000                  

Printing and Binding 694                  -                             800                     242                     558                     800                    800                       

Legal Advertising 626                  224                        500                     476                     24                       500                    500                       

Miscellaneous Services 4,142               3,534                     6,500                  2,539                  3,961                  6,500                 5,000                    

Misc-Web Hosting -                   1,743                     1,550                  787                     763                     1,550                 1,600                    

Office Supplies -                   -                             500                     -                          500                     500                    500                       

Total Personnel and Administration 120,741           176,132                 158,349              148,897              61,496                210,393             159,139                

Water Utility Services

Contracts-Bulk Potable Water 682,830           638,286                 651,396              614,763              204,921              819,684             760,000                

Contracts-Bulk Wastewater 1,712,674        2,176,988              1,672,422           1,699,244           566,415              2,265,659         2,100,000             

Contracts-Misc Labor 6,771               -                             5,000                  -                          5,000                  5,000                 5,000                    

Contracts-Irrigation (Re-Use) 1,276,430        1,303,470              1,393,188           1,068,089           356,030              1,424,119         1,400,000             

Depreciation Expense 824,385           831,135                 -                          -                          -                      -                     -                        

Total Water Utility Services 4,503,090        4,949,879              3,722,006           3,382,096           1,132,365           4,514,461         4,265,000             

Field

ProfServ-Field Management 324,714           362,636                 395,906              296,930              98,977                395,907             408,000                

Contracts-Utility Service 629,941           735,762                 1,145,472           859,104              286,368              1,145,472         1,202,746             

Electricity - General 99,176             108,554                 95,000                88,500                29,500                118,000             110,000                

Internet - Lift stations 33,840             33,840                   33,840                25,149                8,460                  33,609               34,000                  

Rental - Container 1,778               2,037                     1,800                  1,385                  608                     1,993                 2,400                    

R&M-Lift Station 68,035             -                             -                          -                          -                      -                     -                        

R&M-Pump Station 2,153               -                             -                          -                          -                      -                     -                        

R&M-Meter Change-Out 85,075             61,676                   225,000              1,716                  56,250                57,966               225,000                

R&M-Utility Maintenance 818,816           1,083,426              500,000              720,328              240,109              960,437             1,000,000             

R&M-Maintenance Building 7,224               7,224                     7,500                  5,418                  1,806                  7,224                 8,000                    

Misc-Contingency 24,299             2,018                     2,500                  693                     1,807                  2,500                 2,500                    

Total Field 2,095,051        2,397,173              2,407,018           1,999,223           723,885              2,723,108         2,992,646             

OPERATING REVENUES

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Fiscal Year 2024 Modified Tentative Budget

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 Page 11

Agenda Page #048



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

 
Water And Sewer Fund

ADOPTED ACTUAL PROJECTED TOTAL ANNUAL

ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET THRU JUL - PROJECTED BUDGET 

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 JUN-2023 SEP-2023 FY 2023 FY 2024

Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Fiscal Year 2024 Modified Tentative Budget

Debt Service

Amortization Expense 30,254             30,254                   -                          -                          -                          -                         -                            

Principal Debt Retirement -                       -                         935,000              935,000              -                          935,000             960,000                

Interest Expense 100,787           73,614                   57,506                33,545                23,961                57,506               29,132                  

Total Debt Service 131,041           103,868                 992,506              968,545              23,961                992,506             989,132                

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 6,849,923     7,627,052          7,279,879        6,498,761        1,941,707        8,440,468       8,405,917          

Operating income (loss) 552,327           2,082,762              375,020              252,243              308,627              560,870             (448,035)               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Interest Income 521                  374                        -                          -                          -                          -                         -                            

Contribution to (Use of) Fund Balance -                       -                             375,020              -                          -                          -                         (448,035)               

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES (USES) 521               374                    375,020           -                      -                      -                     (448,035)           

Change in net assets 552,848           2,083,136              375,020              252,243              308,627              560,870             (448,035)               

TOTAL NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 29,530,829     30,083,677            32,166,816         32,166,816         -                          32,166,816       32,727,686           

TOTAL NET ASSETS, ENDING 30,083,677$ 32,166,816$      32,541,836$    32,419,059$    308,627$         32,727,686$   32,279,651$      

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 Page 12

Agenda Page #049



ENTERPRISE
Community Development District

 
Series 2012 - Revenue Refunding  Bond

Due Date Principal  Coupon 
Semi-Annual 

Interest Period Total Fiscal Totals

11/1/2023 3.03% $14,566.08 $14,566.08

5/1/2024 $960,000.00 3.03% $14,566.08 $974,566.08 $989,132.15

11/1/2024 3.03% $0.00 $0.00

Total $960,000.00 $29,132.15 $989,132.15 $989,132.15

Amortization Schedule

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget
     Fiscal Year 2024 13

Agenda Page #050



ENTERPRISE 

Community Development District        Water/Sewer Fund   

           
Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

 

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
     Fiscal Year 2024 

REVENUES 

 
Interest - Investments 
The District earns interest income on their operating and investment accounts.  

 
Water Revenue  
Utility billings for the water base facility charges (fixed charges) and the water usage charges (varies depending on 
consumption), which takes into consideration; consumption growth and rate increases plus any variance from the current 
actual. 

 
Sewer Revenue  
Utility billings for the wastewater, or sewer, base facility charges (fixed charges) and the wastewater usage charges (varies 
depending on consumption), which takes into consideration; consumption growth and rate increases plus any variance from 
the current actual. 

 
Irrigation Fees 
Utility billings for the reuse base facility charges (fixed charges) and the reuse usage charges (varies depending on 
consumption, which takes into consideration; consumption growth and rate increases plus any variance from the current 
actual. 

 
Other Miscellaneous Revenues 
The District may receive monies from additional resources that are not included in any other category. 

 
Connection Fees W/S 
In accordance with the adopted rate schedule, any new project coming online is charged fees for their connection to the 
utility system.   

 
 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Administrative 
 
P/R - Board of Supervisors 
Chapter 190 of the Florida Statutes allows for members of the Board of Supervisors to be compensated $200 per meeting 
at which they are in attendance. The amount for the fiscal year based upon twelve meetings with board members receiving 
payment. This amount is split between the general fund and the water/sewer fund 50/50 % 

 
FICA Taxes 
The IRS considers Supervisors to be employees, so the appropriate withholding and payroll taxes are withheld from each 
payment. This amount is split between the general fund and the water/sewer fund 50/50 % 

 
Professional Services - Engineering Services 
The District’s engineer, Gai Consultants, will be providing general services to the District related to the utility system, i.e., 
attendance and preparation for monthly Board meetings, attendance at monthly utility meetings, review of contracts, review 
of agreements, and other research assigned as directed by the Board of Supervisors and the District Manager. Engineering 
services related to utility systems will be funded by the Enterprise CDD water/sewer fund. Engineering services for permit 
reviews and administration will be paid by third-party developers. 

 
Professional Services - Financial Advisor 
The District will utilize the services from Public Resources Management Group to perform periodic rate studies, analyze 
debt coverage ratios, review the annual budget, and other services as requested by the Board. 
 

 
 

14

Agenda Page #051



ENTERPRISE 

Community Development District        Water/Sewer Fund   

           
Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

 

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
     Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

Administrative (continued) 

 
Professional Services - Legal Services  
The District’s Attorney will be providing general legal services to the District related to the utility system, i.e., attendance 
and preparation for monthly Board meetings, review of contracts, review of agreements and Resolutions, and other research 
assigned as directed by the Board of Supervisors and the District Manager. The water/sewer fund and the general fund 
share these costs. 

 
Professional Services - Management Consulting Services 
The District has contracted with Inframark - Infrastructure Management Services to provide management, accounting, and 
recording secretary services. These services include, but are not limited to, advertising, recording and transcribing of Board 
meetings; administrative services; budget preparation, accounting support, financial reporting, and assisting with annual 
audits; and District management services. 

 
Professional Services - Trustee Fees 
The District will pay annual trustee fees for the Series 2012 Water/Sewer Bond.  
 

Auditing Services 
The District is required to conduct an annual audit of its financial records by an Independent Certified Public Accounting 
Firm.  The budgeted amount for the fiscal year is based on contracted fees from an existing engagement letter. This amount 
will be shared 50/50 with the general fund. 

Communication - Telephone 

The District uses Smart City for internet access and AT&T for the utility service. 

 
Postage and Freight 
Actual postage and/or freight used for District mailings including agenda packages, vendor checks and other correspondence.  

Insurance-General Liability 

The District's General Liability & Public Officials Liability Insurance policy is with Florida Municipal Insurance Trust.  They 
specialize in providing insurance coverage to governmental agencies. The budgeted amount allows for a projected increase 
in the premium due to market uncertainty. 

 
Printing and Binding 
Copies used in the preparation of agenda packages, required mailings, and other special projects.   
 

Legal Advertising 
The District is required to advertise various notices for monthly Board meetings and other public hearings in the Osceola 
News Gazette.  
 

Miscellaneous Services 
This budget line item represents bank accounts fees. 

Miscellaneous-Web Hosting  

This is to comply with state Statutes for posting information on internet and hosting by Campus Suite, monthly maintenance 
and quarterly monitoring, and additional expenses. These amounts will be shared 50/50 with the General Fund.  

Office Supplies 

Supplies used in the preparation and binding of agenda packages, required mailings, and other special projects. 
 

15

Agenda Page #052



ENTERPRISE 

Community Development District        Water/Sewer Fund   

           
Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

 

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
     Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

 
Water Utility Services 
 
Contracts - Bulk Potable Water 
The District receives a monthly invoice from Toho Water Authority for purchased potable water based on the meter readings 
at the lift station.   

 
Contracts - Bulk Wastewater 
The District receives a monthly invoice from Toho Water Authority for wastewater, or sewer, based on the meter readings 
at the lift station.   
 

Contracts - Miscellaneous Labor 
This budget line is for out of scope Toho Water Authority charges. 

 
Contracts - Irrigation (Re-Use) 
The District receives a monthly invoice from Toho Water Authority for purchased reuse water, based on the meter readings 
at the lift station. 
 

Field 
 
Professional Services - Field Management 
Includes payroll and overhead costs associated with the services being provided under a management consulting contract 
with Inframark - Infrastructure Management Services. This includes employees utilized in the field and office management 
of all District assets.  

 
Contracts - Utility Service 
Costs associated with the utility maintenance contract with Inframark Operations Division for administration, customer 
service, booster pump station, potable water system, wastewater system, reuse system services. 

 
Electricity - General  
Electricity accounts with Duke Energy for all lift-stations and other utility-related accounts.  
 

Internet – Lift stations 
Smart City internet access for all Lift stations. 

 
Rental - Containers  
Container Rental (Mobile Mini): Storage for all necessary equipment and supplies.  

  
R&M - Meter Change Out 
Costs associated with the utility maintenance contract with Inframark Operations Division for purchasing and replacing water 
meters, boxes and backflows. 
 

R&M - Utility Maintenance 
Costs associated with the utility maintenance contract with Inframark Operations Division for repairs to the utility system 
components, and other maintenance expenses incurred during the fiscal year. 

 
O&M - Maintenance Building 
This represents building operating costs: such as electricity, water, sewer and reuse, janitorial, landscaping, pest control 
and window cleaning. 

 

Misc. - Contingency 
This represents any additional field expenditures that are not provided elsewhere in the budget. 

 

16

Agenda Page #053



ENTERPRISE 

Community Development District        Water/Sewer Fund   

           
Budget Narrative 
Fiscal Year 2024 

 

 

     Annual Operating and Debt Service Budget 
     Fiscal Year 2024 

EXPENDITURES  

 

Field (continued) 

 
Debt Service 
 
Principal Debt Retirement 
The District pays regular principal payments annually in order to pay down/retire the debt. 

 
Interest Expense 
The District pays regular interest expense on the debt twice during the year. 
 
 

17

Agenda Page #054



Subsection 6C 
 

Resolution 2023-11 

Agenda Page #055



RESOLUTION 2023-11 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE ENTERPRISE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) RELATING TO 
THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING THE BUDGETS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2023, AND ENDING 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024; AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2023, submitted to 

the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Enterprise Community Development District (“District”) 

proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending 

September 30, 2024 (“Fiscal Year 2023/2024”), along with an explanatory and complete financial plan for 

each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the District filed 

a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having jurisdiction over the area 

included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public hearing to be 

given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at least 

two (2) days before the public hearing; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1 of each year, 

the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget for the ensuing fiscal 

year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to defray all expenditures of the 

District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget shall 

project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, including reserves for 

contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during the fiscal year. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

THE ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

 SECTION 1. BUDGET 

 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the office of 

the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and hereby approves 

certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

 

b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, is hereby 

adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes 

(“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; provided, however, that the 

comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget may be subsequently revised as 

deemed necessary by the District Manager to reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 

c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District Manager 

and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget for the Enterprise 

Community Development District for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2024.” 

 

Agenda Page #056



d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s official 

website within thirty (30) days after adoption and shall remain on the website for at least 

two (2) years.   

 

 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 

 

 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 2023/2024, the sum 

of $________________ to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or otherwise, which sum is deemed by 

the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during said budget year, to be divided 

and appropriated in the following fashion: 

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $__________________ 

 

WATER AND SEWER FUND    $__________________ 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUND (SERIES 2012)  $__________________ 

 

 TOTAL ALL FUNDS     $__________________ 

  

 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

 

 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 2023/2024 

or within sixty (60) days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 may amend its Adopted Budget 

for that fiscal year as follows: 

 

a. A line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund may be decreased or increased by 

motion of the Board recorded in the minutes, and approving the expenditure, if the total 

appropriations of the fund do not increase. 

 

b. The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase or 

decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund if the total appropriations 

of the fund do not increase and if either (i) the aggregate change in the original 

appropriation item does not exceed the greater of $15,000 or 15% of the original 

appropriation, or (ii) such expenditure is authorized by separate disbursement or spending 

resolution. 

 

c. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with Florida 

law. 

 

 The District Manager or Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to the budget under paragraph 

c. above are posted on the District’s website within five (5) days after adoption and remain on the website 

for at least two (2) years.   

 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

adoption.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16th DAY OF AUGUST 2023.  

 

ATTEST:      ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

_____________________________          

Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 

 

Exhibit A: FY 2023/2024 Budget 

Agenda Page #057



Subsection 6D 
 

Resolution 2023-12 

Agenda Page #058



RESOLUTION 2023-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT MAKING A DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND 
IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024, PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, 
CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL, PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL, 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Enterprise Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 

special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the purpose of 

providing, operating, and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities, and services to the lands 

within the District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District is located in Osceola County, Florida (“County”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements and 

provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan and Chapter 

190, Florida Statutes; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to undertake 

various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s budget (“Adopted 

Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2023, and ending September 30, 2024 (“Fiscal Year 

2023/2024”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and maintenance 

of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted Budget; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands within 

the District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 

assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the special 

assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the District 

desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2023/2024; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such special 

assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector (“Uniform Method”), 

and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method by, among other things, entering 

into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector of the County for that purpose; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the Assessment Roll of the Enterprise 

Community Development District (“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B” and 

Agenda Page #059



incorporated as a material part of this Resolution by this reference, and to certify the Assessment Roll to 

the County Tax Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to amend the 

Assessment Roll, certified to the County Tax Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser 

updates the property roll for the County, for such time as authorized by Florida law. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF THE ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 

 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines that 

the provision of the services, facilities, and operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and 

peculiar benefit to the lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. 

The allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted lands, as shown in Exhibits “A” and “B,” is 

hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 

 

 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, 

and using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special assessments, a 

special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied on benefitted lands within 

the District, and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.” The lien of the special assessments for 

operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution shall be effective upon passage of this 

Resolution. Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the 

“maximum rate” authorized by law for operation and maintenance assessments. 

 

 SECTION 3. COLLECTION. The collection of the operation and maintenance special 

assessments and previously levied debt service assessments shall be at the same time and in the same 

manner as County taxes in accordance with the Uniform Method, as indicated on Exhibits “A” and “B.”  

The decision to collect special assessments by any particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill 

– does not mean that such method will be used to collect special assessments in future years, and the District 

reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, regardless of past 

practices.   

 

 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 

“B,” is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the County Tax Collector in 

the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall be paid to the District. 

 

 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep apprised of 

all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date of this Resolution and 

shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for such time as authorized by 

Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of the Assessment Roll, the District Manager 

shall file the updates in the District records. 

 

 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 

of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this Resolution, 

or any part thereof. 

 

 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage and 

adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 16th day of August 2023. 

 

 

Signatures follow on the next page. 

Agenda Page #060



ATTEST:      ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

_____________________________          

Secretary Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 

 

Exhibit A:  Budget  

Exhibit B:  Assessment Roll  

 

Agenda Page #061



Section 7 
 

Staff Reports 

Agenda Page #062



Subsection 7A 
 

District Manager 

Agenda Page #063



Subsection 7A(i) 
 

GOGov Agreement 

Agenda Page #064



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

1 

AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT OF SHARED GOGOV SERVICES (CCDD-ECDD) 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PAYMENT OF SHARED GOGOV SERVICES (CCDD-
ECDD) (“Agreement”), effective as of the ___ day of June, 2023 (the “Effective Date”), between: 
 

CELEBRATION COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a 
local unit of special purpose government created under Chapter 190, 
Florida Statutes, whose mailing address is 313 Campus Street, Celebration, 
Florida 34747 (the “CCDD”); and 
 
ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local 
unit of special purpose government created under Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes, whose mailing address is 313 Campus Street, Celebration, Florida 
34747 (the “ECDD”). 
 
CCDD and ECDD are hereinafter sometimes referred to collectively as the 
“Parties.”  
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the CCDD is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to 
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CCDD has entered into that Citizen Request Management (CRM), Citizen 
Notifications & Alerts, ArcGIS Integration Order Form, dated April 20, 2023, with GOGov, Inc., a New 
York corporation (“GOGov”) and the Addendum to the GOGov Order Form dated May 15, 2023 (the 
“GOGov Contract”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties agree that the CCDD shall enter into the GOGov Contract to provide shared 
communication services including Citizen Request Management (CRM), Citizen Notifications & Alerts 
and ArcGIS Integration to the County’s ESRI GIS System for all the Parties, as further described in Exhibit 
“A”  (the “Shared Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the ECDD agrees to pay a proportionate share of the cost of the Shared Services to the 
CCDD; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the ECDD consents to the CCDD entering into separate agreements with other entities 
to pay their proportional share of the Shared Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CCDD and ECDD wish to reflect their desire to share costs for the Shared Services 
through the execution of this Agreement.  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits that will accrue to each party arising out of the 
execution of this Agreement, the sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do hereby agree 
as follows: 
 

Agenda Page #065



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

2 

1. RECITALS.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

 
2. TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date, and shall 

continue through July 31, 2024, with two automatic one (1) year renewals, unless otherwise terminated 
hereunder.  This Agreement may only be terminated as provided herein or otherwise agreed upon in 
writing by the Parties. 

 
3. SHARED SERVICES.  The CCDD shall enter into the GOGov Contract for communication 

services including Citizen Request Management (CRM), Citizen Notifications & Alerts and ArcGIS 
Integration to the County’s ESRI GIS System for the term of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, consideration of each Party’s budget may be used by such Party in determining the approval of 
changes or annual renewal to the Shared Services.  The Parties may be subject to an increase in the annual 
fees by seven (7) percent on the anniversary date of each annual term.  The CCDD shall advise ECDD of 
any increase to the GOGov Contract price within seven (7) days of the CCDD’s receipt of such 
information.  The Parties agree that the CCDD shall be responsible for all contractual communications 
with GOGov. 
 

4. PAYMENT.  The Parties agree to be responsible for [______] of the total cost of the Shared 
Services.  The CCDD shall invoice ECDD on an annual basis for their share of the Shared Services.  
ECDD agrees to pay the CCDD the annual amount due, payable within ten (10) days following receipt of 
the invoice from the CCDD.  All costs incurred under this Agreement shall be equally apportioned 
[______] among the Parties.  For the first year of this Agreement through July 31, 2024, the annual cost 
per party shall be $4,215.00.   

 
5. EVENT OF DEFAULT.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that the failure to pay a party’s 

cost of the Shared Services shall constitute a default of this Agreement.  Any amount due to the CCDD 
by ECDD not paid within such ten (10) day period shall bear interest at the Default Interest Rate, 
calculated at twelve (12) percent. The failure to pay by ECDD shall allow the CCDD to terminate this 
Agreement with ten (10) days written notice.  ECDD shall be responsible for payment for the Shared 
Services through the date of termination.  

 
6. TERMINATION.  Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, CCDD shall, 

in its sole discretion and without cause, have the right to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to ECDD.  ECDD may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written 
notice to CCDD, prior to June 1 of each year.  Payment shall be required by ECDD for the Shared Services 
through the date of termination. 
 

7. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that a party is required to enforce this 
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the defaulting party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' 
fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 

8. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement 
may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by each of the Parties.  

 

Agenda Page #066



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

3 

9. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this Agreement 
(“Notices”) shall be in writing and delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or overnight 
delivery service, to the parties, as follows: 

If to CCDD:  Celebration Community Development District 
     313 Campus Street 
     Celebration, Florida 34747 
     Attention: Angel Montagna, District Manager 
     Telephone: (407) 566-1935 
 
  Copy to:   Latham, Luna, Eden & Beaudine, LLP 
     201 S. Orange Avenue, Suite 1400 
     Orlando, Florida 32801  
     Attention: Jan Albanese Carpenter, District Counsel 
     Telephone: (407) 481-5800 
 

If to ECDD:  Enterprise Community Development District 
     313 Campus Street 
     Celebration, Florida 34747 
     Attention: Angel Montagna, District Manager 
     Telephone: (407) 566-1935 
 

Copy to:   Kutak Rock LLP 
107 W. College Avenue 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301  

     Attention:  Sarah R. Sandy, District Counsel  
     Telephone: (850) 692-7300 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received upon actual 
delivery at the address set forth above, which may be evidenced by confirmation of delivery via overnight 
delivery service, United States postal service certified mail or by courier service. Notices delivered after 
5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business 
day.  If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business 
day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for each party may deliver Notice on behalf of the respective party he/she represents.  Any party 
or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and addressees of 
any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on at least five (5) 
days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein. 
 

10. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully by and 
between the Parties as an arm’s length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation of this 
Agreement and received the advice of counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of 
any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are all deemed to have drafted, chosen, and selected the 
language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party as the drafter 
of that language.  

 

Agenda Page #067



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

4 

11. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason of, to or for the benefit of any third 
party not a formal party to this Agreement other than to successor and assigns of the parties as provided 
herein.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon 
any person or corporation other than the Parties any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this 
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be 
binding upon the Parties and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
12. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall 

be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  Each party consents 
that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be in Osceola County, 
Florida. 

 
13. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall be effective after execution by all of the Parties 

hereto. 
 
14. PUBLIC RECORDS.  The Parties understand and agree that all documents of any kind 

provided to the CCDD may be public records and treated as such in accordance with Florida law. 
 
15. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this Agreement, or 
any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.   

 
16. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION.  The Parties agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 

each other for and from any loss or liability arising out of a party’s breach of this Agreement.  
 
17. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

deemed as a waiver of immunity or limit of liability of the CCDD beyond any statutory limited waiver of 
immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third 
party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of 
Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law. 

 
18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this Agreement are for 

convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

 
19. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each 

of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts together shall 
constitute but one and the same instrument.  Signature pages and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be 
detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document physically to form one 
document. 

 
[SIGNATURES FOLLOW ON NEXT PAGE] 

 

Agenda Page #068



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

5 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be duly executed affective as 
of the day and year first above written.  
 
 
       CCDD:  
 
       CELEBRATION COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
        a Florida community development district 
 
 
       By:       
        Greg Filak 
        Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

 
 
 
ECDD:  

 
       ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY 
       DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
        a Florida community development district 
 
 
       By:       
        __________________ 
        Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #069



Celebration CDD  
CCDD-ECDD Agreement - GOGov 

6 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF SHARED SERVICES 
 
 

The Shared Services shall include the following: 
 

1. Citizen Request Management (CRM) – unlimited subscription 
2. Citizen Notifications & Alerts (Notify) – unlimited subscription 
3. ArcGIS Integration to the County’s ESRI GIS System 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Page #070



Subsection 7A(ii) 
 

Meeting Schedule 

Agenda Page #071



ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
NOTICE OF MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
The Board of Supervisors of the Enterprise Community Development District will hold their 

meetings for Fiscal Year 2024 at the District Office, located at 313 Campus Street, Celebration, 

Florida 34747 at 4:00 p.m., generally on the first Wednesday of every month, unless noted 

otherwise: 

 

 October 4, 2023 April 3, 2024 

 November 1, 2023 May 1, 2024 

 December 6, 2023 June 5, 2024 

 January 3, 2024 July 3, 2024 

 February 7, 2024 August 7, 2024 

 March 6, 2024 September 4, 2024 

 
The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provision of 

Florida Law for community development districts and may be continued to a date, time, and 

location to be specified on the record at the meetings. 

   

There may be occasions when Supervisors or staff will participate via telephone or other 

communications media technology. In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations at these meetings because of a 

disability or physical impairment should contact the District Office at (407) 566-1935 at least two 

(2) calendar days prior to the meetings. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the 

Florida Relay Service at 7-1-1 or (800) 955-8771 (TTY)/ (800) 955-8770 (Voice) for aid in 

contacting the District Office. 

 

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 

considered at these meetings is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and 

accordingly, the person may need to ensure a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including 

the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 

Angel Montagna, District Manager 

 

 

 
Publication date: Thursday, October 5, 2023 

Agenda Page #072



Subsection 7B 

 
Field Operations 

Agenda Page #073



Subsection 7B(i) 
  

Field Report 

Agenda Page #074



Enterprise Community 

Development District 

Field Management 

Report 

Agenda Page #075



   

•  Met with contractors monthly 

•  Followed up with vendors on pending items 

•  Reviewed and processed invoices on a weekly basis 

•  Performed irrigation maintenance/repairs 

•  Followed up on daily resident and vendor activities 

•  Returned phone calls 

•  Solved resident inquiries made by phone and e-mail 

•  Picked up trash along 192, 417, and green areas 

•  Cleared weeds from lift stations and applied Round-up spray 

•  Blew sidewalks and drains clear of debris 

•  Cleaned signs 

•  Trimmed and removed branch debris from along the Enterprise areas of Celebration Ave, 

Celebration Pl, 192, and 417 

ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

           June 2023 

FIELD MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

 

COMPLETED ITEMS: 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
❖ Inframark Utility Report 
❖ Yellowstone Report 
❖ Sitex Aquatic 
❖ Clarke Mosquito Report 

 

Agenda Page #076



PROJECT 6/9/23, 8:33 AM

Friday, June 9, 2023

Prepared For Enterprise Board

32 Items Identified

Russ Simmons -Field Manager Celebration
Inframark

Agenda Page #077



Item 1
Assigned To Benchmark
Time to spray weeds 417 by day care

Item 2
Assigned To Benchmark
417 slope not mowed by day care

08:35 6/9/2308:35 6/9/23

08:35 6/9/2308:35 6/9/23

Page 2 of 17

Agenda Page #078



Item 3
Assigned To Benchmark
Slope not mowed by hospital

Item 4
Assigned To Benchmark
Weeds 417 by hospital

08:38 6/9/2308:38 6/9/23

08:41 6/9/2308:41 6/9/23

Page 3 of 17

Agenda Page #079



Item 5
Assigned To Benchmark
Remove plant material off bridge

Item 6
Assigned To Benchmark
Weeds on 417 everything else in this
area looks good

08:50 6/9/2308:50 6/9/23

08:50 6/9/2308:50 6/9/23

Page 4 of 17

Agenda Page #080



Item 7
Assigned To Benchmark
Quote for maybe 8 hawthorns

Item 8
Assigned To Benchmark
Quote for 20 hawthorns toll plaza

08:59 6/9/2308:59 6/9/23

08:59 6/9/2308:59 6/9/23

Page 5 of 17

Agenda Page #081



Item 9
Assigned To Benchmark
What would be good in this area
main toll plaza

Item 10
Assigned To Benchmark
Area not mowed

09:01 6/9/2309:01 6/9/23

09:08 6/9/2309:08 6/9/23

Page 6 of 17

Agenda Page #082



Item 11
Assigned To Benchmark
Weeds tree beds

Item 12
Assigned To Benchmark
Cel Ave 417 off ramp behind fence
not mowed

09:09 6/9/2309:09 6/9/23

09:14 6/9/2309:14 6/9/23

Page 7 of 17

Agenda Page #083



Item 13
Assigned To Benchmark
Need sod where tree was removed

Item 14
Assigned To CDD
Cleared back to chain link fence per
DOT

09:16 6/9/2309:16 6/9/23

09:17 6/9/2309:17 6/9/23

Page 8 of 17

Agenda Page #084



Item 15
Assigned To CDD
Back off fence needs cleaned

Item 16
Assigned To Sitex
Pep boys pond

09:19 6/9/2309:19 6/9/23

09:28 6/9/2309:28 6/9/23

Page 9 of 17

Agenda Page #085



Item 17
Assigned To Benchmark
Jacob get with me on this 2 areas 1
at East end and 1 at West end

Item 18
Assigned To Sitex
192 @ Celebration place

09:32 6/9/2309:32 6/9/23

09:38 6/9/2309:38 6/9/23

Page 10 of 17

Agenda Page #086



Item 19
Assigned To Benchmark
Weeds at switch gear behind fence
end of boardwalk

Item 20
Assigned To Benchmark
Pond edge not trimmed

09:40 6/9/2309:40 6/9/23

09:40 6/9/2309:40 6/9/23

Page 11 of 17

Agenda Page #087



Item 21
Assigned To Benchmark
Tree rings throughout need attention

Item 22
Assigned To Benchmark
Remove vegetation from fence cel
ave cel place

09:41 6/9/2309:41 6/9/23

09:48 6/9/2309:48 6/9/23

Page 12 of 17

Agenda Page #088



Item 23
Assigned To Benchmark
Pump site needs work

Item 24
Assigned To Sitex
Walgreens pond

09:49 6/9/2309:49 6/9/23

09:52 6/9/2309:52 6/9/23

Page 13 of 17

Agenda Page #089



Item 25
Assigned To Sitex
5 story pond

Item 26
Cable company

09:55 6/9/2309:55 6/9/23

09:59 6/9/2309:59 6/9/23

Page 14 of 17

Agenda Page #090



Item 27
More damage

Item 28
Assigned To AT&T

10:00 6/9/2310:00 6/9/23

10:00 6/9/2310:00 6/9/23

Page 15 of 17

Agenda Page #091



Item 29
Cable company

Item 30
Assigned To Sitex
Pond East of C2 canal

10:01 6/9/2310:01 6/9/23

10:01 6/9/2310:01 6/9/23

Page 16 of 17

Agenda Page #092



Item 31
Assigned To Benchmark
Sod looking good

Item 32
Assigned To AT&T
Spectrum board under C2 canal and
hit AT&T line

10:03 6/9/2310:03 6/9/23

10:10 6/9/2310:10 6/9/23

Page 17 of 17

Agenda Page #093



Enterprise Community 

Development District 

Clarke Mosquito 

Control Report 

Agenda Page #094



Route Start Date End Date Used Quantity Unit of 
Measure

Unit of Measure

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 05/04/2023 05/04/2023 10.70 mi 1.54 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 05/09/2023 05/09/2023 10.80 mi 1.39 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 05/12/2023 05/12/2023 10.50 mi 1.49 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 05/18/2023 05/18/2023 10.90 mi 1.56 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 05/26/2023 05/26/2023 10.70 mi 1.46 gal

53.60

Customer Chemical 
Used 

Total For The Month of May:

ECDD Services By Customer/Route Summary

1/1  6/9/2023 1:14:03 PM

Agenda Page #095



Enterprise Community 

Development District 

Field Management 

Report 

Agenda Page #096



   

•  Met with contractors monthly 

•  Followed up with vendors on pending items 

•  Reviewed and processed invoices on a weekly basis 

•  Performed irrigation maintenance/repairs 

•  Followed up on daily resident and vendor activities 

•  Returned phone calls 

•  Solved resident inquiries made by phone and e-mail 

•  Picked up trash along 192, 417, and green areas 

•  Cleared weeds from lift stations and applied Round-up spray 

•  Blew sidewalks and drains clear of debris 

•  Cleaned signs 

•  Trimmed and removed branch debris from along the Enterprise areas of Celebration Ave, 

Celebration Pl, 192, and 417 

ENTERPRISE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

           July 2023 

FIELD MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

 

COMPLETED ITEMS: 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 
❖ Inframark Utility Report 
❖ Yellowstone Report 
❖ Sitex Aquatic 
❖ Clarke Mosquito Report 

 

Agenda Page #097



PROJECT 8/8/23, 8:41 AM

Tuesday, August 8, 2023

Prepared For Enterprise Board

20 Items Identified

Russ Simmons -Field Manager Celebration
Inframark

Agenda Page #098



Item 1
Assigned To Benchmark
Observation

Item 2
Assigned To Benchmark
Not being edged

08:42 8/8/2308:42 8/8/23

08:45 8/8/2308:45 8/8/23

Page 2 of 11

Agenda Page #099



Item 3
Assigned To Benchmark
Need plants added

Item 4
Assigned To Benchmark
417 needs spraying

08:46 8/8/2308:46 8/8/23

08:47 8/8/2308:47 8/8/23

Page 3 of 11

Agenda Page #100



Item 5
Assigned To Benchmark
417 got 80% kill on weeds need a
little more spraying

Item 6
Assigned To Benchmark
Looks like irrigation main leak

08:51 8/8/2308:51 8/8/23

08:55 8/8/2308:55 8/8/23

Page 4 of 11

Agenda Page #101



Item 7
Assigned To Sitex
Observation

Item 8
Assigned To ?
Still haven’t got a response from
cable company to fix sidewalk and
bury cable

08:59 8/8/2308:59 8/8/23

09:01 8/8/2309:01 8/8/23

Page 5 of 11

Agenda Page #102



Item 9
Assigned To Benchmark
Observation

Item 10
Assigned To Benchmark
New Bahia doing okay

09:05 8/8/2309:05 8/8/23

09:09 8/8/2309:09 8/8/23

Page 6 of 11

Agenda Page #103



Item 11
Assigned To Benchmark
Valve by loading dock not closing all
the way

Item 12
Assigned To Benchmark
Need a little more cleanup

09:11 8/8/2309:11 8/8/23

09:18 8/8/2309:18 8/8/23

Page 7 of 11

Agenda Page #104



Item 13
Assigned To Benchmark
Irrigation problems dead plants

Item 14
Assigned To Sitex
Pepboys pond algae

09:23 8/8/2309:23 8/8/23

09:32 8/8/2309:32 8/8/23

Page 8 of 11

Agenda Page #105



Item 15
Assigned To Benchmark
Ditch looks like it is being
maintained on a regular basis now
which is great

Item 16
Assigned To Steelhead Construction
Have 3 caps being made

09:36 8/8/2309:36 8/8/23

09:44 8/8/2309:44 8/8/23

Page 9 of 11

Agenda Page #106



Item 17
Assigned To Engineered Coatings
Solutions
Repainting pump site

Item 18
Assigned To Sitex/ Benchmark
Walgreens Pond
Observation

09:48 8/8/2309:48 8/8/23

09:53 8/8/2309:53 8/8/23

Page 10 of 11

Agenda Page #107



Item 19
Assigned To Benchmark
Grass looks good

Item 20
Assigned To Sitex
5 story pond

09:56 8/8/2309:56 8/8/23

09:58 8/8/2309:58 8/8/23

Page 11 of 11

Agenda Page #108



Enterprise Community 

Development District 

Clarke Mosquito 

Control Report 

Agenda Page #109



Route Start Date End Date Used Quantity Unit of 
Measure

Unit of Measure

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 07/07/2023 07/07/2023 10.40 mi 1.43 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 07/20/2023 07/20/2023 10.80 mi 1.58 gal

Celebration CDD - 010053    2 07/27/2023 07/27/2023 10.80 mi 1.54 gal

32.00

Customer Chemic
al Used 

Total For The Month of July:

ECDD Services By Customer/Route Summary

1/1  8/1/2023 1:56:25 PM

Agenda Page #110



Subsection 7C 

 
Utility Operations 

Agenda Page #111



Subsection 7C(i) 
  

Utility Report 

Agenda Page #112



 

Enterprise Community Development 
District 

 

May 2023, Management, Operations & Maintenance 
Report  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #113



 

Angel Montagna 

District Manager 

Enterprise Community Development District 

313 Campus Street 

Celebration, FL 34747 

 

Dear Ms. Montagna: 

Inframark is pleased to provide you with the Monthly Operations Report for May 2023. This report 

contains information that will provide you with a comprehensive view of our daily operational efforts. 

To ensure we are providing information that is valuable to you, please let me know if I should add or 

retract any pertinent information. We appreciate the opportunity to serve the customers of Enterprise 

CDD. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any concerns or questions you may have.  

Highest Regards, 

 

 
Edward Smith | Project Manager 

 

313 Campus St, Celebration FL, 34747 

(M) (863) 222-1981 | www.inframark.com 

Agenda Page #114

http://www.inframark.com/


` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 1 

Summary 
 

I am proud to report that we have had zero compliance issues to report to FDEP.   

Items Requiring Approval 
 

Request Impact Est. Cost 

Items for review have been submitted 
separately. 

N/A 
 

N/A 

 

Noteworthy Events 
 

 There have been several leaks for the month of May where sidewalks have had to be taken up. 
 

 Vendor that is going to paint main station will be staring at the end of July. 

 We have been doing a lot of repairs on service lines where there are leaks damaged by roots that are 
mostly under the sidewalks but not all. 

 Meter change out program has been concentrated mostly on the commercial route and is almost 
complete. 
 

 Lift station cleaning program was completed for May and next event scheduled for June 2023. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

 During the month of May we concentrated on: 
o  Meter changeout program.  
o  Changing out residential meters that have failed.                                                                                       
o  Exercising valves. Inspecting manholes.  
o  Utility workers are still installing meters at Celebration Island Village. 

Operations, Maintenance and Repair 
 Compliance 

o The Large User contract requirement of obtaining two Chlorine Disinfectant Residual 

samples was performed for this month without exception. 

o The Monthly Operational Report (MOR) has been submitted to FDEP. 

o The Q4 Disinfectant Residual report has been submitted to FDEP. 

o The “Risk & Resilience Vulnerability Assessment” (required by EPA) has been completed 

in partnership with FRWA.  

o The BAC-T testing that is performed twice per month by Benchmark Labs showed to be in 

compliance, and all results were sent to FDEP.  

 

Agenda Page #115



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 2 

 

 

 

 

Performance Metrics 
Current Month Prior Month 2023 Year to 

Date May 2023      April 2023 

Wastewater (MG) 38.31 37.64 180.48 

Reclaimed water purchased 
(MG) 86.50 85.66 368.79 

Potable water purchased (MG) 47.10 44.52 218.19 

Potable consumption billed (MG) 37.167 41.019 184.947 

Unaccounted for water    
Meters Read 5405 5405 27004 

Meter re-reads 69 124 351 

Bills produced, mailed 2971 2978 14713 

Revenue collected $737,642.49 $671,098.94 $3,382,004.49 

Adjustments $-17,754.18 $27,977.28 $88,872.39 

Number of line breaks  2 2 

Hydrants flushed Services Performed by Fire Department 

Odor complaints 0 0 0 

Manholes inspected 28 63 276 

Valves exercised 30 58 193 

Customer service phone calls 212 280  1342 

Brand new service connections 4 7 23 

Service/Work orders closed 62 55 318 

Sunshine locates performed 87 83 690 

(Started in July) Meters replaced 96 75 818 

Agenda Page #116



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 3 

Health & Safety 

 

 Zero LTIs and OSHA recordable for the month. 

 All Inframark employees are up to date on their required training. 

 The monthly safety training on eLearning was completed by all staff. 

 Daily safety “tailgate” discussions are held with the entire crew.  

 

 

On-Site Utilities Personnel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Looking Ahead 
                       

o In the months to come air release valve will be modified and worked on. 

o Quote for painting of Main Station pipes has been approved and scheduling in process.  

 

 

Field Tech(s) 

Nelson Henriquezgil 

Raudy Abreu 

Nicolas Estrella 

Adalberto Perez 

Senior Field 

Tech(s) 

Rafael Liriano 

Daniel De Jesus 

Project Manager 

Edward Smith 

Customer Service 

Supervisor  

Renea 

McRoberts 

 

Agenda Page #117



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 4 

Appendix A 
 

Pg. 5: MOR (Submitted to FDEP) 

Pg. 6 – 7: BAC- T Test Results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #118



Agenda Page #119



Agenda Page #120



 

Enterprise Community Development 
District 

 

June 2023, Management, Operations & Maintenance 
Report  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #121



 

Angel Montagna 

District Manager 

Enterprise Community Development District 

313 Campus Street 

Celebration, FL 34747 

 

Dear Ms. Montagna: 

Inframark is pleased to provide you with the Monthly Operations Report for June 2023. This report 

contains information that will provide you with a comprehensive view of our daily operational efforts. 

To ensure we are providing information that is valuable to you, please let me know if I should add or 

retract any pertinent information. We appreciate the opportunity to serve the customers of Enterprise 

CDD. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any concerns or questions you may have.  

Highest Regards, 

 

 
Edward Smith | Project Manager 

 

313 Campus St, Celebration FL, 34747 

(M) (863) 222-1981 | www.inframark.com 

Agenda Page #122

http://www.inframark.com/


` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 1 

Summary 
 

I am proud to report that we have had zero compliance issues to report to FDEP.   

Items Requiring Approval 
 

Request Impact Est. Cost 

Items for review have been submitted 
separately. 

N/A 
 

N/A 

 

Noteworthy Events 
 

 There have been several leaks for the month of June where sidewalks have had to be taken up. 
 

 The vendor that is going to paint the main station will be starting at the end of July. 

 We have been doing a lot of repairs on service lines where there are lines damaged by roots that are 
mostly under the sidewalks and in the roadway. 

 Meter change out program has been concentrated mostly on the commercial route and is almost 
complete. 

 Lead and Copper sampling scheduled to be done in July will give update once sample results are 
received. 
 
 

 Lift station cleaning program was completed for June and next event scheduled for July 2023. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

 During the month of June we concentrated on: 
o  Meter changeout program.  
o  Changing out residential meters that have failed.                                                                                       
o  Exercising valves. Inspecting manholes.  
o  Utility workers are still installing meters at Celebration Island Village. 

Operations, Maintenance and Repair 
 Compliance 

o The Large User contract requirement of obtaining two Chlorine Disinfectant Residual 

samples was performed for this month without exception. 

o The Monthly Operational Report (MOR) has been submitted to FDEP. 

o The Q4 Disinfectant Residual report has been submitted to FDEP. 

o The “Risk & Resilience Vulnerability Assessment” (required by EPA) has been completed 

in partnership with FRWA.  

Agenda Page #123



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 2 

o The BAC-T testing that is performed twice per month by Benchmark Labs showed to be in 

compliance, and all results were sent to FDEP.  

 

 

 

 

 

Performance Metrics 
Current Month Prior Month 2023 Year to 

Date June 2023 May 2023 

Wastewater (MG) 36.91 38.31 217.39 

Reclaimed water purchased 
(MG) 78.74 86.5 447.53 

Potable water purchased (MG) 44.65 47.10 262.84 

Potable consumption billed (MG) 39.67 37.167 224.617 

Unaccounted for water    
Meters Read 5438 5405 32442 

Meter re-reads 145 69 496 

Bills produced, mailed 2982 2971 17695 

Revenue collected $726,341.63 $737,642.49 $4,108,346.12 

Adjustments $-32,897.14 $-17,754.18 $55975.25 

Number of line breaks  2 2 

Hydrants flushed Services Performed by Fire Department 

Odor complaints 0 0 0 

Manholes inspected 56 28 332 

Valves exercised 30 30 223 

Customer service phone calls 231 212  1573 

Brand new service connections 3 4 26 

Service/Work orders closed 71 62 389 

Sunshine locates performed 40 87 730 

(Started in July) Meters replaced 82 96 900 

Agenda Page #124



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 3 

Health & Safety 

 

 Zero LTIs and OSHA recordable for the month. 

 All Inframark employees are up to date on their required training. 

 The monthly safety training on eLearning was completed by all staff. 

 Daily safety “tailgate” discussions are held with the entire crew.  

 

 

On-Site Utilities Personnel 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Looking Ahead 
                       

o In the months to come air release valve will be modified and worked on. 

o Quote for painting of Main Station pipes has been approved and scheduling in process.  

 

 

Field Tech(s) 

Nelson Henriquezgil 

Raudy Abreu 

Nicolas Estrella 

Adalberto Perez 

Senior Field 

Tech(s) 

Rafael Liriano 

Daniel De Jesus 

Project Manager 

Edward Smith 

Customer Service 

Supervisor  

Renea 

McRoberts 

 

Agenda Page #125



` 

Management Operations Maintenance Report Page 4 

Appendix A 
 

Pg. 5: MOR (Submitted to FDEP) 

Pg. 6 – 7: BAC- T Test Results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #126



Agenda Page #127



Agenda Page #128



Subsection 7D 
  

District Counsel 

Agenda Page #129



Subsection 7D(i) 

 
Plat for Island Village 

Phase 1A 

Agenda Page #130



Agenda Page #131



Agenda Page #132



Agenda Page #133



Agenda Page #134



Agenda Page #135



Agenda Page #136



Agenda Page #137



Agenda Page #138



Agenda Page #139



Agenda Page #140



Agenda Page #141



Subsection 7E 
  

Engineer 

Agenda Page #142



Subsection 7E(i) 
  

WA 2023-02 

Agenda Page #143



Agenda Page #144



Agenda Page #145



Agenda Page #146



 

Subsection 7E(ii) 
  

Annual Report 
 

Agenda Page #147



 

 

 gaiconsultants.com

Orlando Office    T 407.423.8398 

618 East South Street   F 407.843.1070 

Suite 700 

Orlando, Florida 32801 

 

July 17, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

Ms. Angel Montagna, LCAM 
Central Regional Manager 
Inframark 
313 Campus Street 
Celebration, Florida 34747 

Engineer’s Certification Report for the Enterprise Community Development District 
Water and Sewer Bonds, Series 2012 

Dear Ms. Montagna: 

Section 11.17 (b) of the Master Trust Indenture (MTI) between the Enterprise Community Development 
District (ECDD) and SunTrust Bank for the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 requires that 
ECDD obtain the services of a Consulting Engineer to provide an annual review of the water and sewer 
systems’ (the “Utility System”) operations. The annual review is presented herein and serves as the 
Engineering Certification as required by the Indenture. Copies of the Certification findings, 
recommendations, and estimates made herein are to be provided to the Trustee for inspection by 
Bondholders, if such inspection is requested. 

Utility System Operational Overview 

An assessment was conducted on the Utility System to include a physical inspection of various water and 
sewer components, interviews with operation’s personnel, and an investigation of the general utility 
service area. This assessment was conducted to establish the general condition of the existing potable 
water and reclaimed water booster pump station and the sewer collection system to include gravity 
mains, manholes, and pump stations. The assessment is to verify that operation and maintenance were 
ongoing as originally intended and consistent with industry standards. Attachment “A” includes 
photographs taken during the July 07, 2023, site visit to generally illustrate various Utility System 
components. 

From the site visit and limited review of the Utility System records it appeared that the booster stations, 
sewer equipment and ancillary components were in average to good physical condition with minimal 
deferred maintenance items observed. At the time of the inspection, the Utility System appeared to be 
operating as designed and consistent with facilities similar in nature and function with no major 
operational issues observed. An inventory of valves for potable water/ reclaimed water/ force main 
systems, hydrants, connections, lift stations, manholes and booster stations within the service area can 
be found in Attachment “B”. Attachment “C” contains a summary of the lift stations and the associated 
pump information.  

There is general wear of some ancillary components but is not hindering operations. Replacement and 
reconditioning of said components are currently being addressed as general maintenance items now, and 
in future years.  

Utility System Financial Overview 

Typically, Repair and Maintenance (R&M) funds should be set approximately at 5% of the anticipated or 
budgeted, revenue. ECDD Water & Sewer budgeted approximately $7,654,898 in revenues for the fiscal 
year of 2023 (FY2023) and set aside $500,000 for R&M Maintenance. This appears to be appropriate 
considering the age and condition of the system components. 

Agenda Page #148



Ms. Angel Montagna, LCAM Page 2 

July 17, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

 gaiconsultants.com

Utility System Insurance Overview 

In addition to the aforementioned conditional and operational assessments, the MTI requires that ECDD 
set aside funding for bodily injury and property damage insurance. The ECDD Utility System operating 
budget includes funding of these insurance requirements. A copy of the ECDD insurance declarations is 
included as Attachment “D”. 

Considering site assessments, record reviews, and planned Utility System improvements, it appears that 
the facilities will continue to operate as intended based on the current design and permitting. Also 
considering the previously discussed R&M funding barometers and projected revenues, it appears that 
the Utility System R&M budget is sufficiently funded for the current fiscal year. In addition to operating 
requirements, the ECDD Utility funds secures personal injury and property insurance typical of a utility of 
similar size and nature. 

We are pleased to have the opportunity to continue serving the District in this matter. Please inform us if 
you need anything further. 

 

Sincerely, 

GAI Consultants, Inc. 

 

 

 

Gregory D. Kolb, PE 
Senior Project Manager, Water 

 

GDK/bna 

Attachments:  Attachment A: Photos 

 Attachment B: Celebration Inventory 

 Attachment C: Summary of Lift Stations 

 Attachment D: Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Declarations 

 

cc: Kathleen Leo, PE 

 Nathalia Kail, PhD, EI 

  

 

 

Agenda Page #149



July 12, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

 gaiconsultants.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Photos 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #150



1 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 1 – TOWN CENTER PUMP STATION 

 

            

                                Site Plan                              Wet Well 

               

                          Control Panel                  Valve Vault                     

  

Agenda Page #151



2 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 2 – LAKE EVALYN PUMP STATION 

        

                            Site Plan            Control Panel 

 

   

                                 Wet Well                Valve Vault 

  

Agenda Page #152



3 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 3 – SPRING PARK PUMP STATION (SOUTH VILLAGE) 

 

 

Site Plan 
 

 

Wet Well  

 

Valve Vault 
 
 

 

Control Panel 

  

Agenda Page #153



4 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 4 - OAK SHADOW PUMP STATION (EAST VILLAGE) 

 

  

                                   Site Plan                                  Wet Well 

  

                Control Panel                             Valve Vault                     

  

Agenda Page #154



5 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 5 - LONG VIEW - NORTH VILLAGE  

 

     

                           Site Plan             Control Panel 

                           

                      

                            Wet Well                   Valve Vault                     

Agenda Page #155



6 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

 Lift Station No. 6 - STICKLEY PUMP STATION (ARTISAN PARK) 

 

                     

Site Plan         Control Panel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wet Well

               Valve Vault 

 

SCADA Control Panel 

Agenda Page #156



7 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 7 - CELEBRATION AVENUE PUMP STATION (SOUTH VILLAGE) 

 

 

Site Plan 
 

          

 

Wet Well  

 

Control Panel       
 

                                                                            

 
Valve Vault 

 
  

 

Agenda Page #157



8 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 8 - CELEBRATION BLVD (SENIOR LIVING) 

 

 
 

Site Plan 
 

 
 

Wet Well 

 
 

Valve Vault 

 
 

Control Panel 

  

Agenda Page #158



9 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 9 - WORLD DRIVE REPUMP STATION 

 

 
 

Site Plan                    
                                      

 
Valve Vault                     

 

 
 

Wet Well 
 

 
 

Control Panel 
  

Agenda Page #159



10 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 10 - ACADIA PUMP STATION 

 

         

Site Plan  Control Panel 

 

  

                Wet Well                                  Valve Vault                     

 

  

Agenda Page #160



11 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 11 - SPRING LAKE PARK PUMP STATION 

 

 

Site Plan 
 

 

 
 

Wet Well  

 

Valve Vault 
 

 

 
 

Control Panel 
 
 

 

                              Standby Generator 

Agenda Page #161



12 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Lift Station No. 12 – ISLAND VILLAGE PUMP STATION 

 

 

Site Access 
 

 

                                   Site Plan 

 
Valve Vault                     

 

  

                                Wet Well 

 

Control Panels 
 

 

    Standby Generator 

Agenda Page #162



13 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Potable Water and Reclaimed Water Booster Pump Stations & Master Meter Site 

 

 

Reclaimed Water Pumps 

 

Potable Water Booster Pumps 
 
 

 

Booster Pump Control Panel 1 
 

Booster Pump Control Panel 2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page #163



14 

 

ECDD Attachment-A    

Potable Water and Reclaimed Water Booster Pump Stations & Master Meter Site (cont.) 

 

           

                        Generator Enclosure                                                 Generator Engine 

 

 

Site Plan 

Agenda Page #164



July 12, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

 gaiconsultants.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

Celebration Inventory  

 

 
  

Agenda Page #165



ECDD - Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Asset Inventory

Celebration Place Count
Potable water valves 21
Reuse water valves 20
Wastewater force main valves 12
Gravity sewer manholes 6
Potable water booster pump station 1
Reuse water booster pump station 1
Fire Hydrants 7
Power Generators 1
Lots/connections 19

Celebration Village
Potable water valves 130
Reuse water valves 102
Wastewater force main valves 9
Gravity sewer manholes 108
Wastewater Lift Stations 1
Fire Hydrants 75
Town Center Alum Injector System 1
Lots/connections 853

Celebration West Village
Potable water valves 10
Reuse water valves 12
Gravity sewer manholes 28
Fire hydrants 11
Lots/connections 187

Lake Evalyn
Potable water valves 11
Reuse water valves 9
Wastewater force main valves 1
Gravity sewer manholes 5
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire hydrants 4
Lots/connections 112

North Village
Potable water valves 54
Reuse water valves 38
Wastewater force main valves 1
Gravity sewer manholes 76
Wastewater lift stations 2
Fire hydrants 39
Lots/connections 701

July 07, 2023

1 of 4

Agenda Page #166



ECDD - Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Asset Inventory
July 07, 2023

South Village
Potable water valves 72
Reuse water valves 52
Wastewater force main valves 24
Gravity sewer manholes 87
Wastewater lift stations 2
Fire hydrants 36
Lots/connections 893

Roseville Corner
Potable water valves 13
Reuse water valves 15
Gravity sewer manholes 16
Fire hydrants 9
Lots/connections 197

East Village
Potable water valves 84
Reuse water valves 78
Gravity sewer manholes 101
Fire hydrants 58
Lift Station 1
Lots/connections 755

Aquila Reserve
Potable water valves 9
Reuse water valves 9
Gravity sewer manholes 20
Fire hydrants 14
Lots/connections 155

Artisan Park
Potable water valves 77
Reuse water valves 51
Gravity sewer manholes 91
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire hydrants 64
Lots/connections 801

CCDD Facility (Civic Corridor)
Potable water valves 4
Reuse water valves 3
Wastewater force main valves 4
Gravity sewer manholes 0
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 2
Lots/connections 2

2 of 4

Agenda Page #167



ECDD - Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Asset Inventory
July 07, 2023

Spring Lake Phases 1-3
Potable water valves 52
Reuse water valves 43
Wastewater force main valves 0
Gravity sewer manholes 49
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 16
Lots/connections 265

Spring Lake Phase 1
Potable water valves 27
Reuse water valves 23
Wastewater force main valves
Gravity sewer manholes 21
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 5
Lots/connections 87 
clubhouse

Spring Lake Phase 2
Potable water valves 13
Reuse water valves 13
Wastewater force main valves 0
Gravity sewer manholes 15
Wastewater lift stations 0
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 5
Lots/connections 90

Spring Lake Phase 3
Potable water valves 12
Reuse water valves 7
Wastewater force main valves 0
Gravity sewer manholes 13
Wastewater lift stations 0
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 6
Lots/connections 88

Celebration Boulevard Extension
Potable water valves 9
Reuse water valves 9
Wastewater force main valves 6
Gravity sewer manholes 0
Wastewater lift stations 0
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 2
Lots/connections N/A

3 of 4

Agenda Page #168



ECDD - Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Asset Inventory
July 07, 2023

Island Village Phase 1, 2A, and 2B (underway)
Potable water valves 37
Reuse water valves 32
Wastewater force main valves 4
Potable water booster pump station 1
Reuse water booster pump station 1
Gravity sewer manholes 48
Wastewater lift stations 1
Fire Hydrants (incl. valve) 19
Lots/connections 282

4 of 4

Agenda Page #169



July 12, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

 gaiconsultants.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment C 

Summary of Lift Stations  

 

 
  

Agenda Page #170



Summary of Lift Stations and Potable/Reclaimed Pumps ECDD 

 

Lift station #1 located at Town Center in front of 619 Front St 

Two FLYGT 20 HP pumps (250 gpm) 

 

Lift station #2 located near Lake Evelyn at 901 Celebration Ave 

Two FLYGT 5 HP pumps (250 gpm @ 41’ TDH) 

 

Lift station #3 located near 893 Spring Park Loop by lake 

Two WILO 3 HP pumps (150 gpm) 

 

Lift station #4 located near East Village at 772 Oak Shadow St 

Two FLYGT 5 HP pumps (190 gpm @ 42’ TDH) 

 

Lift station #5 located near North Village at 100 Longview Ave 

Two WILO 3 HP pumps (150 gpm) 

 

Lift station #6 located across from 1402 Stickley Ave 

Two FLYGT 3 HP pumps (250 gpm @ 24.5’ TDH) 

 

Lift station #7 located at 1251 Celebration Ave 

Two 20 HP, 27.6 FLA pumps (250 gpm) 

 

Lift station #8 located at 1370 Celebration Blvd Backside 

Two FLYGT 3 HP pumps (115 gpm) 

 

Lift station #9 located at 1662 Celebration Blvd Backside 

Two FLYGT 105 HP pumps (2030 gpm) 

 

Lift station #10 located near North Village at 200 Block of Acadia Terrace 

Two EBARA 15 HP, 19.6 FLA pumps (150 gpm) 

 

Lift station #11 located at the end of Resolute St 

Two FLYGT 3 HP, 9 FLA pumps (250 gpm) 

 

Lift station #12 located at Island Village 

Two FLYGT 45 HP, 51 FLA pumps (800 gpm @ 102’ TDH) 

Agenda Page #171



July 12, 2023 

Project A181174.07 

 gaiconsultants.com

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment D 

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs 
Declarations  

 
 

Agenda Page #172



 
 

 

 

October 1, 2022 
 
RE: Renewal Coverage Agreement for the 10/01/2022 – 9/30/2023 Coverage Year 
 
Dear Member of the FMIT Family, 
 
Thank you for renewing with the Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT), administered by the Florida League of Cities (FLC).  We 
appreciate your continued confidence and support and are so glad you are part of the FMIT family.  As an FMIT Member, FLC staff 
will ensure you continue to receive high quality services and outreach.  We look forward to our continued partnership throughout 
this 10/01/2022 – 9/30/2023 coverage year. 
 
For more than four decades, the FMIT has been providing quality insurance and risk management solutions to Florida public entities, 
and the FMIT’s fiscal position reflects one of financial strength with approximately $210 million in surplus and approximately $557 
million in assets.  Additionally, all of FMIT’s reinsurers are A-rated or better by A. M. Best. We continue to maintain a sound 
operating philosophy that equates to stability when you need us most. 
 
With this letter, you will find your renewal Coverage Agreement.  Please take some time to carefully review the document and give 
us a call should you have questions or comments. 
 
Our mission at FMIT is to Protect the Communities We Call Home, and this mission continues our history of being on the cutting edge 
of coverage thanks to our innovation and flexibility for the betterment of our membership family. Below are a few highlights of the 
10/01/2022 - 9/30/2023 coverage period: 
 

• A summary of coverage agreement changes may be viewed on FMIT’s website under your Member dashboard.  You will see 
a hyperlink under Your Insurance Policy labeled 2022-23 Notice of Change in Policy Terms. 

• Employment Law Advisor (ELA) is a preventative program available to those members with Employment Practices Liability 
through the FMIT. The ELA will give you legal guidance on employment practices liability issues from a Florida-based 
attorney with significant public sector employment law experience at no cost to you.  Simply call 888.368.3648. 

• For FMIT Members with Property coverage, we continue to offer Property Damage Mitigation Coverage combined with our 
proprietary FMIT Disaster Preparedness, Response & Recovery Services and TurnKey Recovery℠ Managed Direct Repair 
Program. With any Named Storm, many Members will experience property losses where services are needed, but the 
damages fall below the applicable Named Storm Deductible. This coverage allows FMIT to provide immediate stabilization 
services through its disaster recovery partnership with Synergy and its robust vendor network. Our goal is returning you to 
business-as-usual as efficiently as possible. This coverage offers a $500,000 per-occurrence limit with no deductible and is in 
addition to your Extra Expense coverage and limits. These services are invaluable to Members after major weather events. 
 

Once again, thank you for your continued support of the FMIT. We look forward to being your insurer of choice for many years to 
come. Please do not hesitate to contact us should you have any questions or concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

  
 
Chris Krepcho, Chief of Insurance and Financial Services 
 

Agenda Page #173



FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES

SPONSORED INSURANCE PROGRAMS

DECLARATIONS

I. DESIGNATED MEMBER:

II. COVERAGE PERIOD

III. AGREEMENT NUMBER

IV. COVERAGES INCLUDED

V. ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM

Address:

From October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023

12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the Designated Member.

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT) FMIT #0710

Enterprise Community Development District

210 North University Drive Suite 702

Coral Springs, FL 33071

Net 

Premium

$31,470 $31,630 

General Liability

Breach Response & Cyber Liability

Property

Workers' Compensation

Normal 

Premium

Expense 

Constant

$160 

October 1, 2022

DateSignature of Authorized Representative

Agenda Page #174



FMIT COND 1019 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #175



FMIT COND 1019 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #176



FMIT COND 1019 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #177



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

PROPERTY, ALLIED LINES AND CRIME

DECLARATIONS

$12,116

Agreement No.: FMIT #0710

Net PremiumLimit
Deductible/

Type

Premium 

Basis

IV. Property and Allied Coverages

From October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the 

Designated Member.

District

Enterprise Community Development District
I. DESIGNATED MEMBER

II. GOVERNMENT DESCRIPTION

III. COVERAGE PERIOD

$1,016,385$1,000 IncludedReal Property*

Named Storm Coverage and 

Percentage Deductible

Refer to Your NS 

Deductible 

Endorsement NS-A 

or NS-B /2%, 3% 

or 5% of damages 

incurred

Coinsurance: 80%

Inflation Guard: No

NoBlanket**:

Replacement CostValuation Basis:

$100,000 IncludedNon-scheduled PITO Sub-Limit*
Time Element

$0Business Income Per Extension Included

80% $1,000,000 IncludedCoinsurance:

Per Extension $0 Included

Inland Marine Valuation Basis: Per Schedule

Extra Expense

$0

$0

Included

IncludedValuable Papers Per Extension

Accounts Receivable Per Extension

Bond

$500,000$0 IncludedFaithful Performance Blanket Bond

$500,000None IncludedEmployee Theft - Per Loss Coverage

V. The FMIT Property Coverage Agreement (hereafter, “Property Coverage Agreement” or “Coverage 

Agreement”) shall include all and only those Forms, Endorsements and Schedules referenced in 

Schedule C.

**If a blanket limit is selected, the blanket limit applies only to Covered Property at locations contained in the Member’s Property 

Schedule, subject to all coverage exclusions, deductible requirement(s) and other provisions of the Coverage Agreement .

*Real Property limit is inclusive of Non-scheduled PITO Sub-Limit.

THIS DECLARATIONS AND THE SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATIONS, TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON CONDITIONS, COVERAGE 

FORM(S) AND ENDORSEMENTS COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED AGREEMENT.

$12,116

VI. ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUM

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT)

Normal 

Premium

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Since 1977

FMIT PROP DEC 1022 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #178



FMIT PROPERTY ALLIED LINES AND CRIME COVERAGES

-    FMIT Property Coverage Agreement Scheduled Coverage Forms List    -

FMIT #0710

Schedule C

Form # Description

Property Common

FMIT COND 1019 Conditions of Coverage

FMIT PROP CA 1022 Property Coverage Agreement

IL 00 17 1198 Common Policy Conditions

FMIT MPC 1022 Miscellaneous Property Coverages

IL 02 55 0106 Florida Changes - Cancellation and Non-renewal

Property

FMIT PROP EP 1021 Earned Premium

PR-SCHED Property Schedule

CP 00 90 0788 Commercial Property Conditions

CP 00 10 0402 Building and Personal Property Coverage Form

FMIT PROP 03 1021 Coverage Extensions

CP 01 25 1007 Florida Changes

CP 10 10 0402 Causes of Loss - Basic Form

CP 10 30 0402 Causes of Loss - Special Form

FMIT PROP ACC 1022 Anti-Concurrent Cause of Loss Endorsement

CP 10 50 0788 Additional Exclusions - Wind Exclusion

FMIT PROP 12 1021 Ordinance or Law Change

CP 10 35 0695 Watercraft Exclusion

FMIT FLOOD 1021 Flood Coverage Excess of Loss

FMIT PROP NS-A 1022 Named Storm Coverage and Percentage Deductible Endorsement

FMIT PROP TER 1021 Terrorism Physical Loss or Physical Damage

CP 14 40 1000 Outside Signs

FMIT EBC 1015 Equipment Breakdown Coverage Schedule

FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Equipment Breakdown Coverage

FMIT FCR 1009 Fungus Remediation

IL 04 01 1007 Florida-Sinkhole Loss Coverage

CP 00 60 0695 Leasehold Interest Coverage Form

FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Event Response for Covered Events at Covered Property

FMIT RECOVERY 1021 FMIT Property Turnkey Recovery Service

CP 00 50 0402 Extra Expense Coverage Form

CP 00 32 0402 Business Income Coverage

FMIT ASSET SURVEY DA 1020 Asset Survey Disclosure and Acknowledgement

FMIT SPECIFIED VALUE DA 1020 Specified Value Policy Coverage Election Disclosure

FMIT PROP APPRAISAL 1020 Appraisal Clause Amendment

Inland Marine

CM 00 01 0904 Commercial Inland Marine Conditions

CM 00 66 0904 Accounts Receivable Coverage Form

CM 00 67 0904 Valuable Papers and Records Coverage Form

Crime

CR 00 25 0506 Government Crime Coverage Form

FMIT PROP GCC-A 1008 Government Crime Coverage Form Amendment

CR 25 09 1010 Include Volunteer Workers as Employees

CR 25 19 0506 Add Faithful Performance of Duty Coverage

FMIT PROP DEC 1022 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #179



FMIT PROP CA 1022 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #180



FMIT PROP CA 1022 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #181



FMIT PROP CA 1022 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #182



IL 00 17 1198 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #183



Miscellaneous Property Coverages

FMIT #0710

October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023

Business Income Other Than Rental Value

Loc # Bldg # Limit Coinsurance

006 001 $1,000,000 80%

All locations are covered under Coverage Extension 5h.

Extra Expense

All locations are covered under Coverage Extension 5e.

Limits on Loss Payment:  40%-80%-100%

Valuable Papers & Records

All locations are covered under Coverage Extension 5b.

Accounts Receivable

All locations are covered under Coverage Extension 5d.

Crime / Bond

Bond Type Deductible AmountBond Limit

Faithful Performance Blanket Bond $0$500,000

Employee Theft - Per Loss None$500,000

FMIT MPC 1022 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #184



IL 02 55 0106 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #185



IL 02 55 0106 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #186



IL 02 55 0106 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #187



FMIT PROP EP 1021 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #188



FMIT PROP EP 1021 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #189



Property Schedule

Enterprise Community Development District, FMIT #0710

October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023

AddressLocation # Occupancy Construction Type

Cause of Loss - Building Limit Cause of Loss - Personal Property LimitBldLoc

001001 Celebration Place Celebration, FL Signs Joisted Masonry

$0 $38,760Special Form

002001 Celebration Place Celebration, FL Boardwalk Frame

$0 $34,233Basic

004001 Celebration Place Celebration, FL #1 Booster Pump Non-Combustible

$0 $9,250Special Form

005001 Celebration Place Celebration, FL Fencing Frame

$0 $25,830Special Form

001002 Celebration Ave. Celebration, FL Signs Joisted Masonry

$0 $32,300Special Form

001003 200 Celebration Place Celebration, FL Irrigation Non-Combustible

$0 $15,248Basic

001005 US 192 Celebration, FL Boardwalk Frame

$0 $157,606Basic

001006 Blum Lane Celebration, FL #2 Recirculation Pumps Non-Combustible

$0 $14,550Special Form

001007 Various Locations Celebration, FL Residential Street Signs Non-Combustible

$0 $3,708Special Form

001008 Various Locations Celebration, FL Street Lighting Non-Combustible

$0 $684,900Special Form

$1,016,385 Total:

PR-SCHED 1014 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #190



CP 00 90 0788 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #191



CP 00 90 0788 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #192



CP 00 10 0402 Page 1 of 14

Agenda Page #193



CP 00 10 0402 Page 2 of 14

Agenda Page #194



CP 00 10 0402 Page 3 of 14

Agenda Page #195



CP 00 10 0402 Page 4 of 14

Agenda Page #196



CP 00 10 0402 Page 5 of 14

Agenda Page #197



CP 00 10 0402 Page 6 of 14

Agenda Page #198



CP 00 10 0402 Page 7 of 14

Agenda Page #199



CP 00 10 0402 Page 8 of 14

Agenda Page #200



CP 00 10 0402 Page 9 of 14

Agenda Page #201



CP 00 10 0402 Page 10 of 14

Agenda Page #202



CP 00 10 0402 Page 11 of 14

Agenda Page #203



CP 00 10 0402 Page 12 of 14

Agenda Page #204



CP 00 10 0402 Page 13 of 14

Agenda Page #205



CP 00 10 0402 Page 14 of 14

Agenda Page #206



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 1 of 8

Agenda Page #207



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 2 of 8

Agenda Page #208



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 3 of 8

Agenda Page #209



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 4 of 8

Agenda Page #210



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 5 of 8

Agenda Page #211



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 6 of 8

Agenda Page #212



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 7 of 8

Agenda Page #213



FMIT PROP 03 1021 Page 8 of 8

Agenda Page #214



CP 01 25 1007 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #215



CP 01 25 1007 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #216



CP 10 10 0402 Page 1 of 5

Agenda Page #217



CP 10 10 0402 Page 2 of 5

Agenda Page #218



CP 10 10 0402 Page 3 of 5

Agenda Page #219



CP 10 10 0402 Page 4 of 5

Agenda Page #220



CP 10 10 0402 Page 5 of 5

Agenda Page #221



CP 10 30 0402 Page 1 of 9

Agenda Page #222



CP 10 30 0402 Page 2 of 9

Agenda Page #223



CP 10 30 0402 Page 3 of 9

Agenda Page #224



CP 10 30 0402 Page 4 of 9

Agenda Page #225



CP 10 30 0402 Page 5 of 9

Agenda Page #226



CP 10 30 0402 Page 6 of 9

Agenda Page #227



CP 10 30 0402 Page 7 of 9

Agenda Page #228



CP 10 30 0402 Page 8 of 9

Agenda Page #229



CP 10 30 0402 Page 9 of 9

Agenda Page #230



FMIT PROP ACC 1022 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #231



FMIT #0710

X001 002

X005 001

CP 10 50 0788 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #232



FMIT PROP 12 1021 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #233



FMIT PROP 12 1021 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #234



CP 10 35 0695 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #235



FMIT FLOOD 1021 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #236



FMIT FLOOD 1021 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #237



FMIT FLOOD 1021 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #238



FMIT PROP NS-A 1022 Page 1 of 4

Agenda Page #239



FMIT PROP NS-A 1022 Page 2 of 4

Agenda Page #240



FMIT PROP NS-A 1022 Page 3 of 4

Agenda Page #241



FMIT PROP NS-A 1022 Page 4 of 4

Agenda Page #242



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 1 of 6

Agenda Page #243



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 2 of 6

Agenda Page #244



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 3 of 6

Agenda Page #245



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 4 of 6

Agenda Page #246



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 5 of 6

Agenda Page #247



FMIT PROP TER 1021 Page 6 of 6

Agenda Page #248



0710-P22

001 001 Special Form Including Theft$38,760 80% IncludedX

002 001 Special Form Including Theft$32,300 80% IncludedX

CP 14 40 1000 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #249



FMIT EBC 1015 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #250



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 1 of 7

Agenda Page #251



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 2 of 7

Agenda Page #252



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 3 of 7

Agenda Page #253



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 4 of 7

Agenda Page #254



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 5 of 7

Agenda Page #255



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 6 of 7

Agenda Page #256



FMIT EBC/EBX 1015 Page 7 of 7

Agenda Page #257



FMIT FCR 1009 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #258



FMIT FCR 1009 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #259



IL 04 01 1007 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #260



IL 04 01 1007 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #261



CP 00 60 0695 Page 1 of 4

Agenda Page #262



CP 00 60 0695 Page 2 of 4

Agenda Page #263



CP 00 60 0695 Page 3 of 4

Agenda Page #264



CP 00 60 0695 Page 4 of 4

Agenda Page #265



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 1 of 17

Agenda Page #266



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 2 of 17

Agenda Page #267



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 3 of 17

Agenda Page #268



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 4 of 17

Agenda Page #269



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 5 of 17

Agenda Page #270



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 6 of 17

Agenda Page #271



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 7 of 17

Agenda Page #272



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 8 of 17

Agenda Page #273



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 9 of 17

Agenda Page #274



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 10 of 17

Agenda Page #275



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 11 of 17

Agenda Page #276



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 12 of 17

Agenda Page #277



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 13 of 17

Agenda Page #278



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 14 of 17

Agenda Page #279



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 15 of 17

Agenda Page #280



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 16 of 17

Agenda Page #281



FMIT ACTIVE ASSAILANT 1022 Page 17 of 17

Agenda Page #282



FMIT RECOVERY 1021 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #283



FMIT RECOVERY 1021 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #284



FMIT RECOVERY 1021 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #285



CP 00 50 0402 Page 1 of 4

Agenda Page #286



CP 00 50 0402 Page 2 of 4

Agenda Page #287



CP 00 50 0402 Page 3 of 4

Agenda Page #288



CP 00 50 0402 Page 4 of 4

Agenda Page #289



CP 00 32 0402 Page 1 of 8

Agenda Page #290



CP 00 32 0402 Page 2 of 8

Agenda Page #291



CP 00 32 0402 Page 3 of 8

Agenda Page #292



CP 00 32 0402 Page 4 of 8

Agenda Page #293



CP 00 32 0402 Page 5 of 8

Agenda Page #294



CP 00 32 0402 Page 6 of 8

Agenda Page #295



CP 00 32 0402 Page 7 of 8

Agenda Page #296



CP 00 32 0402 Page 8 of 8

Agenda Page #297



FMIT ASSET SURVEY DA 1020 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #298



FMIT ASSET SURVEY DA 1020 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #299



FMIT SPECIFIED VALUE DA 1020 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #300



FMIT PROP APPRAISAL 1020 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #301



FMIT PROP APPRAISAL 1020 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #302



CM 00 01 0904 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #303



CM 00 01 0904 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #304



CM 00 01 0904 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #305



CM 00 66 0904 Page 1 of 4

Agenda Page #306



CM 00 66 0904 Page 2 of 4

Agenda Page #307



CM 00 66 0904 Page 3 of 4

Agenda Page #308



CM 00 66 0904 Page 4 of 4

Agenda Page #309



CM 00 67 0904 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #310



CM 00 67 0904 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #311



CM 00 67 0904 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #312



CR 00 25 0506 Page 1 of 13

Agenda Page #313



CR 00 25 0506 Page 2 of 13

Agenda Page #314



CR 00 25 0506 Page 3 of 13

Agenda Page #315



CR 00 25 0506 Page 4 of 13

Agenda Page #316



CR 00 25 0506 Page 5 of 13

Agenda Page #317



CR 00 25 0506 Page 6 of 13

Agenda Page #318



CR 00 25 0506 Page 7 of 13

Agenda Page #319



CR 00 25 0506 Page 8 of 13

Agenda Page #320



CR 00 25 0506 Page 9 of 13

Agenda Page #321



CR 00 25 0506 Page 10 of 13

Agenda Page #322



CR 00 25 0506 Page 11 of 13

Agenda Page #323



CR 00 25 0506 Page 12 of 13

Agenda Page #324



CR 00 25 0506 Page 13 of 13

Agenda Page #325



FMIT PROP GCC-A 1008 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #326



CR 25 09 1010 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #327



0710-P22

N/A

500,000

CR 25 19 0506 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #328



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

GENERAL/PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT

DECLARATIONS

I. DESIGNATED MEMBER

GOVERNMENT DESCRIPTIONII.

COVERAGE PERIODIII.

Enterprise Community Development District

Agreement No.: FMIT #0710

From October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the Designated 

Member.

District

IV. $18,304

Net 

Premium

$5,000,000

Limit

$0

Deductible/ 

Type

1,552 

Premium 

Basis

Acres:

General/Professional Liability

1. General Liability

a. Broad Form Property Damage Per Form Included$0

b. Extra Contractual Legal Expense IncludedN/A Per Form

c. Fire Legal Liability Included$0 Per Form

d. Medical Attendants'/Medical 

Directors' Malpractice Liability

$5,000,000 Included$0

2. $5,000,000$0Errors and Omissions Liability Included

a. Employment Practices Liability $0 $5,000,000 Included

b. Employee Benefits Program 

Administration Liability

$5,000,000$0 Included

This agreement includes these endorsements and schedules: See Schedule AV.

ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUMVI.

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Since 1977

THIS DECLARATIONS AND THE SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATIONS, TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON CONDITIONS, COVERAGE 

FORM(S) AND ENDORSEMENTS COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED AGREEMENT.

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT)

Normal 

Premium

$18,304

FMIT GL DEC 1022 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #329



DescriptionForm #

Schedule A

FMIT #0710

FMIT GENERAL/PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGES

October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023 Scheduled Coverage Forms List

Conditions of CoverageFMIT COND 1019

Coverage AgreementFMIT CA 1021

Broad Form Property Damage EndorsementFMIT BFPD 1022

Extra Contractual Legal Expense EndorsementFMIT ECLE 1021

Fire Legal Liability EndorsementFMIT FLL 1012

Medical Attendants' / Medical Directors' Malpractice Liability EndorsementFMIT MA 1018

Errors and Omissions Liability EndorsementFMIT EO 1022

Employee Benefit Program Admin. Errors and Omissions LiabilityFMIT EBL 1019

Inverse Condemnation and Bert J. Harris Jr. Private Property Rights 

Protection Act

FMIT IC BH A 1021

Specific Excess Endorsement - General LiabilityFMIT SE GL 1021

Crisis Intervention Expense EndorsementFMIT CIE 1011

Sewerline Backup and Initial Cleanup ExpenseFMIT SBU 1021

FMIT GL DEC 1022 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #330



FMIT BFPD 1022 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #331



FMIT ECLE 1021 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #332



FMIT ECLE 1021 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #333



FMIT ECLE 1021 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #334



FMIT FLL 1012 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #335



FMIT MA 1018 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #336



FMIT EO 1022 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #337



FMIT EO 1022 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #338



FMIT EO 1022 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #339



FMIT EBL 1019 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #340



FMIT EBL 1019 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #341



FMIT EBL 1019 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #342



FMIT IC BH A 1021 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #343



5,000,000

5,000,000

FMIT SE GL 1021 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #344



FMIT CIE 1011 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #345



FMIT SBU 1021 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #346



FMIT SBU 1021 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #347



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT

DECLARATIONS

District

THIS DECLARATIONS AND THE SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATIONS, TOGETHER WITH THE 

COMMON CONDITIONS, COVERAGE FORM(S) AND ENDORSEMENTS COMPLETE THE ABOVE 

NUMBERED AGREEMENT.

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Since 1977

$210$160$50

Net 

Premium

Expense 

Constant

Normal 

Premium

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT)

ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUMV.

A.  Workers Compensation Insurance: Part One of the Agreement applies to the Workers 

Compensation Law of the state of Florida:

B.  Employers Liability Insurance: Part Two of the Agreement applies to work in each state listed in 

item IV.A.  The limits of our liability under Part Two are: 

Bodily Injury by Accident   $1,000,000     each accident 

Bodily Injury by Disease    $1,000,000     policy limit 

Bodily Injury by Disease    $1,000,000     each employee

C.  Other States Insurance: if any

D.  This Agreement includes these endorsements and schedules :  See Schedule D

IV.

COVERAGE PERIOD

From 10/01/2022 to 10/01/2023 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the Designated Member

III.

GOVERNMENT DESCRIPTIONII.

DESIGNATED MEMBER: Agreement No.: FMIT #0710

Enterprise Community Development District

I.

FMIT WC DEC 1022 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #348



FMIT WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY COVERAGES

DescriptionForm #

Schedule D

Enterprise Community Development District, FMIT #0710

October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023 Scheduled Coverage Forms List

Conditions of CoverageFMIT COND 1019

Coverage Agreement - Workers Compensation and Employers LiabilityFMIT WC EL 1015

Experience Rating Modification Factor EndorsementFMIT WC EMF 1016

Workers Compensation ScheduleWC 00 00 01A 1002

Florida Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act EndorsementWC 09 04 03 C 0121

Voluntary Compensation and Employers Liability Coverage EndorsementWC 00 03 11 A

FMIT WC DEC 1022 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #349



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 1 of 6

Agenda Page #350



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 2 of 6

Agenda Page #351



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 3 of 6

Agenda Page #352



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 4 of 6

Agenda Page #353



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 5 of 6

Agenda Page #354



FMIT WC EL 1015 Page 6 of 6

Agenda Page #355



FMIT WC EMF 1016 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #356



WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY POLICY

EXTENSION OF INFORMATION PAGE

ITEM 4. CONTINUED

Policy No.

Page No.

FMIT #0710

1

0

FL

 2,400 Total Payroll: 

925120NAICS:

 2 Employees: 

LOC. 1

FL-9 Intrastate I.D.:

Estimated Annual Premiums

All Other

Subject to 

Modification

Rates Per 

$100 of 

Remun-

eration

Estimated 

Total Annual 

Remuneration

CODE 

NO.CLASSIFICATION OF OPERATIONS

From10/01/2022 To 10/01/2023

CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES NOC 8810  2,400 0.16000  4

AR Adjustment 1.25630  1

Total After Credits  5

Experience Modification Final 9898 1.00000  0

Deviation 9036 9.99900  45

STANDARD PREMIUM  50

Normal Premium  50

Expense Constant 0900  160 

Net Premium  210

Terrorism Risk Insurance Act 9740 -      0 

WC 00 00 01A 1002 Page 1 of 1

Agenda Page #357



WC 09 04 03 C 0121 Page 1 of 2

Agenda Page #358



Enterprise Community Development District
10/01/2022 0710-W22

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust

WC 09 04 03 C 0121 Page 2 of 2

Agenda Page #359



Agenda Page #360



10/01/2022

Enterprise Community Development District

0710-W22

Agenda Page #361



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

BREACH RESPONSE & CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT

DECLARATIONS

I. DESIGNATED MEMBER

GOVERNMENT DESCRIPTIONII.

COVERAGE PERIODIII.

Enterprise Community Development District

Agreement No.: FMIT #0710

From October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the Designated 

Member.

District

IV. Breach Response & Cyber Liability

Coverage Type:  Claims-made and reported coverage per FMIT CYBER insuring agreement.

Retroactive Period:  Full prior acts coverage, except as noted in FMIT CYBER insuring agreement.

Agreement Aggregate Limit of Liability: $1,000,000

Breach Response Services: $1,000,000 (In addition to the Agreement Aggregate Limit)

Net Premium

Included

Limit

$1,000,000 

Per occurrence 

and aggregate 

limit, in addition to 

Cyber Liability 

Limit

Breach Response 

Services

Premium Basis Deductible/Type

Per-claim retention 

Equal to General 

/Professional Liability 

per-occurrence 

deductible in FMIT 

GL DEC 1022 IV. or 

$35,000 

per-occurrence, 

whichever is less

Cyber Liability: Agreement Aggregate Limit of Liability - $1,000,000

Net Premium

Included

Limit

$1,000,000

Per occurrence 

and aggregate 

limit

First Party Loss 

(Included in 

Agreement 

Aggregate Limit):

Business 

Interruption Loss

Cyber Extortion 

Loss

Data Recovery 

Costs

Premium Basis Deductible/Type

Per-claim retention 

Equal to General 

/Professional Liability 

per-occurrence 

deductible in FMIT 

GL DEC 1022 IV. or 

$35,000 

per-occurrence, 

whichever is less

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #362



Included$1,000,000 

Per occurrence 

and aggregate 

limit

First Party Loss 

(Included in 

Agreement 

Aggregate Limit):

Data & Network 

Liability

Regulatory 

Defense & 

Penalties

Payment Card 

Liabilities & Cost

Media Liability

Per-claim retention 

Equal to General 

/Professional Liability 

per-occurrence 

deductible in FMIT 

GL DEC 1022 IV. or 

$35,000 

per-occurrence, 

whichever is less

eCrime (Included 

in Agreement 

Aggregate Limit):

Fraudulent 

Instruction

Funds Transfer 

Fraud

Telephone Fraud

Per-claim retention 

Equal to General 

/Professional Liability 

per-occurrence 

deductible in FMIT 

GL DEC 1022 IV. or 

$35,000 

per-occurrence, 

whichever is less

$1,000,000 

Per occurrence

Included

Criminal Reward Included$5,000 Per 

occurrence

$0 per-claim

This agreement includes these endorsements and schedules: See Schedule AV.

ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUMVI.

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT)

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Since 1977

THIS DECLARATION TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON CONDITIONS, COVERAGE FORMS AND 

ENDORSEMENTS COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED AGREEMENT.

Normal 

Premium

$1,000

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #363



DescriptionForm #

Schedule A

FMIT #0710

FMIT BREACH RESPONSE & CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGES

October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023 Scheduled Coverage Forms List

Conditions of CoverageFMIT COND 1019

Breach Response & Cyber Liability EndorsementFMIT CYBER 1022

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 3 of 3

Agenda Page #364



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 1 of 21

Agenda Page #365



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 2 of 21

Agenda Page #366



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 3 of 21

Agenda Page #367



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 4 of 21

Agenda Page #368



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 5 of 21

Agenda Page #369



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 6 of 21

Agenda Page #370



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 7 of 21

Agenda Page #371



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 8 of 21

Agenda Page #372



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 9 of 21

Agenda Page #373



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 10 of 21

Agenda Page #374



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 11 of 21

Agenda Page #375



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 12 of 21

Agenda Page #376



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 13 of 21

Agenda Page #377



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 14 of 21

Agenda Page #378



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 15 of 21

Agenda Page #379



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 16 of 21

Agenda Page #380



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 17 of 21

Agenda Page #381



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 18 of 21

Agenda Page #382



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 19 of 21

Agenda Page #383



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 20 of 21

Agenda Page #384



FMIT CYBER 1022 Page 21 of 21

Agenda Page #385



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

BREACH RESPONSE & CYBER LIABILITY CHANGE ENDORSEMENT 

THIS ENDORSEMENT FORMS A PART OF THE AGREEMENT NUMBERED BELOW:

MEMBER'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS FMIT NUMBER

IT IS HEREBY NOTED AND AGREED THAT THE FOLLOWING CHANGES ARE MADE:

COVERAGE PERIOD

CHANGES

ADDITIONAL

CYBER-END (10/22)

RETURN

PREMIUM

THE ADDITIONAL/RETURNPREMIUM IS INCLUDED IN THE ATTACHED BILLING INVOICE.

ENDORSEMENT #: 

INITIALS: 

DATE:

Page of

 
Effective October 1, 2022
 
Breach Response & Cyber Liability Coverage Agreement Declarations page is 
amended per the attached.
 
 
Non-premium bearing endorsement.

1

1 1

Enterprise Community Development District
210 North University Drive Suite 702
Coral Springs, FL 33071

October  1, 2022  TO: October  
1, 2023

FMIT #0710 

MVALDIVIESO
12/19/2022

Agenda Page #386



FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST
BREACH RESPONSE & CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGE AGREEMENT

DECLARATIONS

I. DESIGNATED MEMBER

GOVERNMENT DESCRIPTIONII.

COVERAGE PERIODIII.

Enterprise Community Development District
Agreement No.: FMIT #0710

From October 1, 2022 to October 1, 2023 12:01 A.M. Standard Time at the address of the Designated 
Member.

District

IV. Breach Response & Cyber Liability

Coverage Type:  Claims-made and reported coverage per FMIT CYBER insuring agreement.

Retroactive Period:  Full prior acts coverage, except as noted in FMIT CYBER insuring agreement.

Agreement Aggregate Limit of Liability: $1,000,000

Breach Response Services: $1,000,000 (In addition to the Agreement Aggregate Limit)

Net Premium

Included

Limit

$1,000,000 
Per occurrence 
and aggregate 
limit, in addition to 
Cyber Liability 
Limit

Breach Response 
Services

Premium Basis Deductible/Type

Per-claim retention 
Equal to General 
/Professional Liability 
per-occurrence 
deductible in FMIT 
GL DEC 1022 IV. or 
$35,000 
per-occurrence, 
whichever is less

Cyber Liability: Agreement Aggregate Limit of Liability - $1,000,000

Net Premium

Included

Limit

$1,000,000
Per occurrence 
and aggregate 
limit

First Party Loss 
(Included in 
Agreement 
Aggregate Limit):

Business 
Interruption Loss

Cyber Extortion 
Loss

Data Recovery 
Costs

Premium Basis Deductible/Type

Per-claim retention 
Equal to General 
/Professional Liability 
per-occurrence 
deductible in FMIT 
GL DEC 1022 IV. or 
$35,000 
per-occurrence, 
whichever is less

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 1 of 3

Agenda Page #387



Included$1,000,000 
Per occurrence 
and aggregate 
limit

Liability  
(Included in 
Agreement 
Aggregate Limit):

Data & Network 
Liability

Regulatory 
Defense & 
Penalties

Payment Card 
Liabilities & Cost

Media Liability

Per-claim retention 
Equal to General 
/Professional Liability 
per-occurrence 
deductible in FMIT 
GL DEC 1022 IV. or 
$35,000 
per-occurrence, 
whichever is less

eCrime (Included 
in Agreement 
Aggregate Limit):

Fraudulent 
Instruction

Funds Transfer 
Fraud

Telephone Fraud

Per-claim retention 
Equal to General 
/Professional Liability 
per-occurrence 
deductible in FMIT 
GL DEC 1022 IV. or 
$35,000 
per-occurrence, 
whichever is less

$100,000 
Per occurrence

Included

Criminal Reward Included$5,000 Per 
occurrence

$0 per-claim

This agreement includes these endorsements and schedules: See Schedule AV.

ESTIMATED ANNUAL PREMIUMVI.

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (FMIT)

Florida League of Cities Sponsored Insurance Programs Since 1977

THIS DECLARATION TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON CONDITIONS, COVERAGE FORMS AND 
ENDORSEMENTS COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED AGREEMENT.

Normal 
Premium

$1,000

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 2 of 3

Agenda Page #388



DescriptionForm #

Schedule A

FMIT #0710

FMIT BREACH RESPONSE & CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGES
October 1, 2022 - October 1, 2023 Scheduled Coverage Forms List

Conditions of CoverageFMIT COND 1019
Breach Response & Cyber Liability EndorsementFMIT CYBER 1022

FMIT CYBER DEC 1022 Page 3 of 3

CYBER-END 1022 Endorsement #1

Agenda Page #389


	Cover
	Agenda
	5 Consent Agenda
	   5A Minutes
	   5B Financials
	   5C Check Register
	6 Budget Hearing
	   6A Proposed Budget
	   6C Resolution 2023-11
	   6D Resolution 2023-12
	7 Staff Reports
	   7A Manager
	      7A(i) GOGov Agreement
	      7A(ii) Meeting Schedule
	   7B Field
	      7B(i) Field Reports
	      * June 2023
	      * July 2023
	   7C Utilities
	      7C(i) Utility Reports
	      * May 2023
	      * June 2023
	   7D Counsel
	      7D(i) Plat for Ph 1A
	   7E Engineer
	      7E(i) WA 2023-02
	      7E(ii) Annual Report (separate cover)



